
NOTICE OF A MEETING 

(In compliance with Sec. 551.041, Et. Seq., Tex. Gov’t. Code) 

NOTICE is hereby given that the City of Jersey Village Board of Adjustment will hold a meeting 

on January 30, 2024, at 6:00 p.m. in the Civic Center Meeting Room at 16327 Lakeview Drive, 

Jersey Village, Texas 77040.  The City of Jersey Village Board of Adjustment reserves the right 

to meet in closed session on any agenda item should the need arise and if applicable pursuant to 

authorization by Title 5, Chapter 551, of the Texas Government Code. 

A quorum of the City of Jersey Village City Council may be in attendance at this meeting. 

ITEM(S) to be discussed/acted upon by the Board is/are listed on the attached agenda. 

AGENDA 

A. Open Meeting.  Call the meeting to order and the roll of appointed officers will be taken.  Board

Chairman

B. Designate alternate members to serve in place of any absent Board Members.  Board Chairman

C. CITIZENS’ COMMENTS - Any person who desires to address the Board of Adjustment

regarding an item on the agenda will be heard at this time.  In compliance with the Texas Open

Meetings Act, unless the subject matter of the comment is on the agenda, the City staff and

Board Members are not allowed to discuss the subject.  Each person is limited to five (5)

minutes for comments to the Board of Adjustment.  Board Chairman

D. Consider approval of the minutes for the meeting held on December 13, 2023.  Lorri Coody,

City Secretary

E. Conduct a Public Hearing on the request of QT South, LLC, filed on behalf of owners Garfield

Edmonds and Edmonds Company, for a variance to the Jersey Village Code of Ordinance at

Chapter 14, Article IV, Division 2, Section 14-105, the Commercial Permitted Use and

Conditional Use Table, to allow a gasoline filling station to be located in District H on a 6.150

acre tract of land conveyed in/under Harris County Clerk's File Nos. T303407 and

20120273382 and also identified as the properties located at 11518 FM 529 and 0 FM 529

(Corner of Jones and FM 529), which exceeds the minimum separation distance of 3,000 feet

measured from property line to property line from any currently existing gasoline filling

station.  Board Chairman

(1) Discuss and take appropriate action concerning the request of QT South, LLC, filed on

behalf of owners Garfield Edmonds and Edmonds Company, for a variance to the Jersey

Village Code of Ordinance at Chapter 14, Article IV, Division 2, Section 14-105, the

Commercial Permitted Use and Conditional Use Table, to allow a gasoline filling station

to be located in District H on a 6.150 acre tract of land conveyed in/under Harris County

Clerk's File Nos. T303407 and 20120273382 and also identified as the properties located

at 11518 FM 529 and 0 FM 529 (Corner of Jones and FM 529), which exceeds the

minimum separation distance of 3,000 feet measured from property line to property line

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

1



Page   – 2 – 

Board of Adjustment Agenda – January 30, 2024 

 

   

from any currently existing gasoline filling station.  Joe Newton, Building Official 

Representative 

 

F. Consider amendments to the Rules of Procedure for the Board of Adjustment of the City of 

Jersey Village, Texas. Justin Pruitt, City Attorney 
 

G.  Adjourn. 
CERTIFICATION 

 

I, the undersigned authority, do hereby certify in accordance with the Texas Open Meeting Act, the Agenda is posted for public information, 

at all times, for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of the meeting on the bulletin board located at City Hall, 16327 Lakeview, 

Jersey Village, TX 77040, a place convenient and readily accessible to the general public at all times, and said Notice was posted on the 

following date and time: January 22, 2024 at 2:00 p.m. and remained so posted until said meeting was convened.  

 

__________________________________ 

Lorri Coody, City Secretary 
 

 

 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City of Jersey Village will provide for reasonable accommodations for persons 

attending City Council meetings.  Request for accommodation must be made to the City Secretary by calling 713 466-2102 forty-eight 

(48) hours prior to the meetings.  Agendas are posted on the Internet Website at www.jerseyvillagetx.com.  

 

"Pursuant to Section 30.06, Penal Code (trespass by license holder with a concealed handgun), a person licensed under Subchapter 

H, Chapter 411, Government Code (handgun licensing law), may not enter this property with a concealed handgun." 

 

"Pursuant to Section 30.07, Penal Code (trespass by license holder with an openly carried handgun), a person licensed under 

Subchapter H, Chapter 411, Government Code (handgun licensing law), may not enter this property with a handgun that is carried 

openly." 
 

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

2



B. Designate alternate members to serve in place of any absent Board Members.  Board 

Chairman 

 

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

3



C. CITIZENS’ COMMENTS - Any person who desires to address the Board of Adjustment 

regarding an item on the agenda will be heard at this time.  In compliance with the Texas 

Open Meetings Act, unless the subject matter of the comment is on the agenda, the City 

staff and Board Members are not allowed to discuss the subject.  Each person is limited to 

five (5) minutes for comments to the Board of Adjustment.  Board Chairman 

 

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

4



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE JERSEY VILLAGE 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

December 13, 2023 – 6:00 p.m. 

The Board of Adjustment of the City of Jersey Village, Texas, convened on December 13, 2023, 

at 6:00 p.m. in the Civic Center at 16327 Lakeview Drive, Jersey Village, Texas 77040. 

A. The meeting was called to order by Chairman Andrew Mitcham at 6:07 p.m. and the

roll of appointed officers was taken.  Board Members present were:

Andrew Mitcham, Chairman Nester Mena, Board Member 

M. Reza Khalili, Board Member Judy Tidwell, Board Member 

Ken Nguyen, Board Member Bill Smothers, Alternate Place 1 

Nelson L. Feeney, Alternate Place 2

Council Liaison, Jennifer McCrea was present at this meeting. 

City Staff in attendance:  Justin Pruitt, City Attorney; Lorri Coody, City Secretary; Joe 

Newton, Building Official Representative; and Miesha Johnson, Community Development 

Manager. 

B. Designate alternate members to serve in place of any absent Board Members.

This item was not needed.  All Regular Members of the Board were present.

C. CITIZENS’ COMMENTS - Any person who desires to address the Board of Adjustment

regarding an item on the agenda will be heard at this time.  In compliance with the Texas Open

Meetings Act, unless the subject matter of the comment is on the agenda, the City staff and

Board Members are not allowed to discuss the subject.  Each person is limited to five (5)

minutes for comments to the Board of Adjustment.

Kimberly Henao, 15601 Singapore Lane, Jersey Village, Texas (832) 689-9878 – Ms.

Henao introduced herself.  She is a resident of Jersey Village. 

D. Conduct a review of the duties and responsibilities of the Board of Adjustment as well as

review the Board’s Rules and Procedures document.

Justin Pruitt, City Attorney, gave a PowerPoint Presentation concerning the duties and

responsibilities of the Board that included a review of the Board’s Rules and Procedures

document.  Items covered in the presentation are as follows:

1. Legal Authority

2. City Code of Ordinances Section 14-22

3. Texas Local Government Code Section 211.008

4. Texas Local Government Code Section 211.009

5. Rules of Procedure Document

a. Sections I thru IV

b. Section V – Hearings and Decisions

c. The Public Hearing Script

d. The Action Item

e. Formal Proceedings

DRAFT
B

O
A

R
D

 O
F A

D
JU

ST
E

M
E

N
T

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 PA
C

K
E

T
 FO

R
 T

H
E

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 T
O

 B
E

 H
E

L
D

 O
N

 JA
N

U
A

R
Y

 30, 2024

5



 

 

Page 2 of 6                            Minutes of the Board of Adjustment Meeting – December 13, 2023 

 

 

 

f. Appendix A – Procedures for Interpretation of Appeals 

g. Appendix B – Procedures for Special Exceptions 

h. Appendix C – Procedures for Variance 
 

Mr. Pruitt gave detailed information about the ground rules for unnecessary hardship.  The 

information is important because the Board will need to determine if the five items included 

below should be added to the Rules and Procedures document: 
 

The Board had questions concerning the presentation to which City Attorney Pruitt responded 

accordingly.   
 

(1)  the financial cost of compliance is greater than 50 percent of the appraised value of the 

structure as shown on the most recent appraisal roll certified to the assessor for the 

municipality under Section 26.01, Tax Code; 

(2)  compliance would result in a loss to the lot on which the structure is located of at least 25 

percent of the area on which development may physically occur; 

(3)  compliance would result in the structure not being in compliance with a requirement of a 

municipal ordinance, building code, or other requirement; 

(4)  compliance would result in the unreasonable encroachment on an adjacent property or 

easement; or 

(5)  the municipality considers the structure to be a nonconforming structure. 
 

E. Consider amendments to the Rules of Procedure for the Board of Adjustment of the City 

of Jersey Village, Texas.  
 

City Attorney Pruitt introduced the item.  He explained the changes to the Rules and Procedures 

document concerning the appointment of the Chair and Vice Chair and that this amendment is 

needed to bring the Rules and Procedures document in compliance with the recent changes 

made to the Code of Ordinances by City Council. 
 

With limited discussion on the matter, Board Member Khalili moved to approve the proposed 

amendments to the Rules and Procedures document concerning the appointment of the Board’s 

Chair and Vice Chair.  Board Member  Mena seconded the motion.  The vote follows: 
 

Ayes:  Board Members Khalili, Nguyen, Mena, and Tidwell 

 Chairman Mitcham 
 

Nays:  None 
 

The motion carried. 
 

The Board also considered the additional requirements pertaining to variances concerning the 

grounds for unnecessary hardships presented during the training portion of the agenda.  There 

was discussion about these grounds for unnecessary hardship.  Some wondered if they are 

added to the rules, will it change the application form.  City Attorney Pruitt stated that it would 

probably be a good idea to update the form in order to incorporate the change should the Board 

elect to include these grounds in the Rules and Procedure document. 
 

Some board members wanted to add it so that they would have the ability to ask applicants 

about costs.  Others were a bit confused about the “may” language in state law and wondered 

if the Board must include the grounds simply because it is listed in State law.  City Attorney 

DRAFT
B

O
A

R
D

 O
F A

D
JU

ST
E

M
E

N
T

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 PA
C

K
E

T
 FO

R
 T

H
E

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 T
O

 B
E

 H
E

L
D

 O
N

 JA
N

U
A

R
Y

 30, 2024

6



 

 

Page 3 of 6                            Minutes of the Board of Adjustment Meeting – December 13, 2023 

 

 

 

Pruitt explained that the Board does not have to include these grounds, because state law used 

the term “may” and not “shall.”  He further explained that should the Board decide not to 

include the grounds for unnecessary hardship in the Rules, the Board will still have the ability 

to consider the grounds under the state law.   
 

Members felt that the application form should help guide applicants as to what the Board would 

consider.  Some felt that these five grounds should be listed in the Boards Rules and that the 

application should be updated to reflect same. 

 

Question 4 on the current form was discussed.   

 

In conclusion, before adding these grounds to the Rules document, the Board would like to 

look at other cities have for Board of Adjustment Applications and how they are incorporating 

the five grounds for unnecessary hardship.  The Board would like to have another meeting 

scheduled in the new year in late January or early February.   
 

F. Consider approval of the minutes for the meeting held on November 15, 2022.   
 

Board Member Mena moved to approve the minutes for the meeting held on November 15, 

2022.  Board Member Khalili seconded the motion.  The vote follows: 
 

Ayes:  Board Members Khalili, Nguyen, Mena, and Tidwell 

 Chairman Mitcham 
 

Nays:  None 
 

The motion carried. 
 

G. Conduct a Public Hearing at 7 PM on the request of Ralph M. and Nancy W. Green, 

owners, for a variance to the Jersey Village Code of Ordinance at Chapter 14, Article IV, 

Division 2, Section 14-100, the Residential Permitted Use Table, to allow a detached 

garage, which is considered an accessory structure, on their vacant  lot for the property 

located at 16525 De Lozier, Lot 2, Jersey Village, Texas 77040.    
 

Chairman Mitcham opened the public hearing at 7:00 p.m. in order to receive written and oral 

comments from any interested person(s) concerning the request of Ralph M. and Nancy W. 

Green, owners, for a variance to the Jersey Village Code of Ordinance at Chapter 14, Article 

IV, Division 2, Section 14-100, the Residential Permitted Use Table, to allow a detached 

garage, which is considered an accessory structure, on their vacant  lot for the property located 

at 16525 De Lozier, Lot 2, Jersey Village, Texas 77040. 
 

The Board found that the notification requirements for both the City and the Applicant have 

been met for this public hearing. 
 

Chairman Mitcham called upon the applicants to present their case and all evidence supporting 

same. 

 

Mr. Green presented on behalf of the applicants.  He gave each Board Member a handout 

showing pictures of his property.  He explained that he purchased the home in the late 1990’s 

and did a complete remodel in 2003.  He purchased the lot next door in 2017.   

DRAFT
B

O
A

R
D

 O
F A

D
JU

ST
E

M
E

N
T

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 PA
C

K
E

T
 FO

R
 T

H
E

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 T
O

 B
E

 H
E

L
D

 O
N

 JA
N

U
A

R
Y

 30, 2024

7



 

 

Page 4 of 6                            Minutes of the Board of Adjustment Meeting – December 13, 2023 

 

 

 

He recently planned to add on to the existing home but discovered that there really isn’t any 

good options for an addition.  Because he pays quite a bit of money for storage and because he 

would like a home gym, he wants to build an accessory structure (garage) on the lot next door.  

The structure will match the characteristics of  the home.  He would put the garage on the lot 

behind the trees.  That way, in the event the lot is sold, the new owner could build a home in 

front of the garage.  He pointed out that he is not asking for something that has already been 

done.  He pointed to the pictures in his application concerning a home in the city that has 

already done this.  He pointed out that he does not see how his plans would hurt the 

neighborhood. 
 

Once the applicants had completed their case, Chairman Mitcham called upon the Building 

Official to present any information that he deems necessary or appropriate to the application. 
 

Building Official Representative, Joe Newton, highlighted that this construction would be 

considered an accessory structure.  Accessory structures are not permitted on a lot in the city 

that does not have a principal home.  Because of this requirement, Mr. Green is asking the 

Board for a variance that would permit Mr. Green to move forward with construction of the 

accessory structure on the vacant lot located next to the lot where his home is built.   
 

Mr. Newton stated he and Mr. Green discussed combining his two lots through a replat in order 

to resolve the issue.  However, in re-platting the lots into one lot, he still has the issue with 

Section 14-100(h)(1):  No lot in this district for a single-family detached dwelling shall have 

a total area that exceeds by more than 20 percent the total area of any other lot for a single-

family detached dwelling on the same block face.  
 

The board had questions concerning the joining of the lots, to which Mr. Newton responded 

accordingly. 
 

Once the Building Official had completed the presentation of his information, Chairman 

Mitcham called upon those opposed to the granting of the application to present their evidence 

and arguments. 
 

Dennis Petersen, 16552 Cornwall, Jersey Village, Texas (713) 412-6886 -  Mr. Petersen 

stated that the information in the applicant’s application was not very detailed.  It only stated 

what the front of the accessory building would look like.  Listening to the information 

presented at this public hearing gave a bit more of the details.  He explained that he lives on 

the backside of the home or behind Mr. Green.  Mr. Petersen had concerns about where Mr. 

Green intended to locate the building on the lot.  He wanted to know how tall the structure was 

going to be and if it was going to obstruct his view of the bayou.   He wondered if the trees on 

the lot would be cut down.  He stated that this information was not included in the application.   

He gave the Board information about the homes that surround his home and Mr. Green’s home.  

He stated that there are way too many unknowns and would ask that the variance be rejected.   
 

Once those opposing the granting of the application were heard, Chairman Mitcham called 

upon the applicant for the right of rebuttal. 
 

Mr. Green stated the trees will not come down.  He did not consider the view in connection 

with his plans.   

 

DRAFT
B

O
A

R
D

 O
F A

D
JU

ST
E

M
E

N
T

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 PA
C

K
E

T
 FO

R
 T

H
E

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 T
O

 B
E

 H
E

L
D

 O
N

 JA
N

U
A

R
Y

 30, 2024

8



 

 

Page 5 of 6                            Minutes of the Board of Adjustment Meeting – December 13, 2023 

 

 

 

With no further input for the public hearing, Chairman Mitcham closed the public hearing 

concerning Ralph M. and Nancy W. Green’s request for a variance to the Jersey Village Code 

of Ordinance at Chapter 14, Article IV, Division 2, Section 14-100, the Residential Permitted 

Use Table, to allow a detached garage, which is considered an accessory structure, on their 

vacant  lot for the property located at 16525 De Lozier, Lot 2, Jersey Village, Texas 77040.   at 

7:15 p.m. 
 

(1) Discuss and take appropriate action concerning Ralph M. and Nancy W. Green’s 

request for a variance to the Jersey Village Code of Ordinance at Chapter 14, Article 

IV, Division 2, Section 14-100, the Residential Permitted Use Table, to allow a 

detached garage, which is considered an accessory structure, on their vacant  lot for 

the property located at 16525 De Lozier, Lot 2, Jersey Village, Texas 77040.    
 

After conducting the public hearing, the Board engaged in discussion concerning the 

request for variance. 

 

Building Official Representative, Joe Newton, read Section 14-100 (h)(1) for the benefit 

of the Board concerning the joining of the two lots.  He explained that the applicant could 

submit an amended plat.   The prohibition is on the street face.  The parameters of this code 

was discussed to see if there is alternative solution for Mr. Green to build the structure. 
 

The idea of re-platting the property by joining the back half of Lot 2 with the lot where the 

home is built.  This action would result in a kind of “L” shaped lot, leaving the front half 

of Lot 2 untouched.  This idea was discussed in detail by the Board.  
 

Re-platting the lots appears to be an alternative solution.  The Building Official 

Representative stated that this type of re-platting would be permitted.  Given this 

alternative, the property setbacks were discussed.  Height requirements were also 

discussed.  For all sections there is a 5-foot setback.  The building is 24x36.  So with the 

setbacks, the Board discussed if the lot was large enough.   

 

The existing lot was discussed. Also, the number of accessory structures was discussed.  

Four accessory structures are permitted on a lot. 
 

The applicant is keeping all the trees on the lot.  There was a concern that should the re-

platting route be followed, anyone having access to two or more lots could join the lots.  

This was discussed and City Attorney Pruitt explained the variance that we are discussing 

is only for  the property listed in Mr. Green’s application, and any new replats would have 

to comply with City Ordinances.  This request is to put an accessory structure on a vacant 

lot that does not have a primary structure. 
 

Mr. Newton explained that the applicant has proposed a design that would enable a future 

owner to build a primary structure on this lot.  However, the general rule is that an 

accessory structure should be an accessory to a primary structure, thus the variance request. 
 

The definition of detached garage was discussed.   
 

Some board members felt that in the spirit of our responsibilities, there is not a hardship 

proven for this request.  Also, there is an alternative solution, but this was not part of the 

DRAFT
B

O
A

R
D

 O
F A

D
JU

ST
E

M
E

N
T

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 PA
C

K
E

T
 FO

R
 T

H
E

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 T
O

 B
E

 H
E

L
D

 O
N

 JA
N

U
A

R
Y

 30, 2024

9



 

 

Page 6 of 6                            Minutes of the Board of Adjustment Meeting – December 13, 2023 

 

 

 

application.  When matching the face of the application to the City’s Code of Ordinances, 

there does not appear to be a hardship. 
 

With no further discussion on the matter, Board Member Khalili moved to grant the request 

of Ralph M. and Nancy W. Green, owners, for a variance to the Jersey Village Code of 

Ordinance at Chapter 14, Article IV, Division 2, Section 14-100, the Residential Permitted 

Use Table, to allow a detached garage, which is considered an accessory structure, on their 

vacant  lot for the property located at 16525 De Lozier, Lot 2, Jersey Village, Texas 77040.  

Board Member Mena seconded the motion.  The vote follows: 
 

Ayes:  Board Member Mena  
 

Nays:  Board Members Khalili, Nguyen, and Tidwell 

 Chairman Mitcham 
 

The motion carried. 
 

The Board’s Original Order No. 2023-01 is attached as Exhibit A and made a part of these 

minutes. 
  

H. Adjourn 
 

With no other business before the Board, Chairman Mitcham adjourned the meeting at 7:59 

p.m. 

_____________________________________ 

Lorri Coody, City Secretary 

 

DRAFT
B

O
A

R
D

 O
F A

D
JU

ST
E

M
E

N
T

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 PA
C

K
E

T
 FO

R
 T

H
E

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 T
O

 B
E

 H
E

L
D

 O
N

 JA
N

U
A

R
Y

 30, 2024

10



CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE - BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

ORDER NO. 2023-01 

WHEREAS, on November 16, 2023, Ralph M. and Nancy W. Green, owners, filed a request for 

variance to the Jersey Village Code of Ordinance at Chapter 14, Article IV, Division 2, Section 

14-100, the Residential Permitted Use Table, to allow a detached garage, which is considered an

accessory structure, on their vacant  lot for the property located at 16525 De Lozier, Lot 2, Jersey

Village, Texas 77040.

WHEREAS, the Board conducted a Public Hearing and received information from the Public and 

from the Applicant on December 13, 2023; and  

WHEREAS, after closing the hearing, the Board in making its decision on the variance request 

considered: 

➢ if the request for variance is contrary to the public’s interest;

➢ if, due to special conditions, enforcement of Chapter 14, Article IV, Division 2, Section

100 will result in an unnecessary hardship for Ralph M. and Nancy W. Green; and

➢ that in granting the variance, the spirit of this chapter will be upheld and observed;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDERED BY THE BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT OF THE 

CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE THAT: 

SECTION 1.   In consideration of the information before the Board, with a concurring vote of at 

least four (4) members, the Board voted to ____ GRANT __X__ DENY the request of Ralph M. 

and Nancy W. Green, owners, for a variance to the Jersey Village Code of Ordinance at Chapter 

14, Article IV, Division 2, Section 14-100, the Residential Permitted Use Table, to allow a 

detached garage, which is considered an accessory structure, on their vacant  lot for the property 

located at 16525 De Lozier, Lot 2, Jersey Village, Texas 77040.  

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ORDERED this 13th day of December 2023. 

S/Andrew Mitcham, Chairman 

ATTEST: 

S/Lorri Coody, City Secretary

Exhibit A

DRAFT
B

O
A

R
D

 O
F A

D
JU

ST
E

M
E

N
T

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 PA
C

K
E

T
 FO

R
 T

H
E

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 T
O

 B
E

 H
E

L
D

 O
N

 JA
N

U
A

R
Y

 30, 2024

11



BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT - CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE, TEXAS 
AGENDA REQUEST 

 
AGENDA DATE: January 30, 2024   AGENDA ITEM:    E 
 
AGENDA SUBJECT:  Conduct a Public Hearing on the request of QT South, LLC, filed on 
behalf of owners Garfield Edmonds and Edmonds Company, for a variance to the Jersey Village 
Code of Ordinance at Chapter 14, Article IV, Division 2, Section 14-105, the Commercial 
Permitted Use and Conditional Use Table, to allow a gasoline filling station to be located in District 
H on a 6.150 acre tract of land conveyed in/under Harris County Clerk's File Nos. T303407 and 
20120273382 and also identified as the properties located at 11518 FM 529 and 0 FM 529 (Corner 
of Jones and FM 529), which exceeds the minimum separation distance of 3,000 feet measured 
from property line to property line from any currently existing gasoline filling station. 
 
Department/Prepared By:   Lorri Coody, City Secretary 
 
EXHIBITS:   Application with Appointments of Agents and Site Plans 
                        City’s Certification of Public Hearing Posting Requirements 

Applicant’s Certification - Posting Requirements  
PH Script 
   

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
 
QT South, LLC, filed a request for variance on behalf of owners Garfield Edmonds and Edmonds 
Company, for a variance to the Jersey Village Code of Ordinance at Chapter 14, Article IV, 
Division 2, Section 14-105, the Commercial Permitted Use and Conditional Use Table, to allow a 
gasoline filling station to be located in District H on a 6.150 acre tract of land conveyed in/under 
Harris County Clerk's File Nos. T303407 and 20120273382 and also identified as the properties 
located at 11518 FM 529 and 0 FM 529 (Corner of Jones and FM 529), which exceeds the 
minimum separation distance of 3,000 feet measured from property line to property line from any 
currently existing gasoline filling station. 
 
Section 14-105 is the Commercial Permitted Use and Conditional Use Table.  It requires that 
gasoline filling stations located in District H must have a minimum separation distance of 3,000 
feet measured from property line to property line from any currently existing gasoline filling 
station. Additionally, it provides that all storage tanks for gasoline shall be below the surface of 
the ground. 
 
Before the Board can consider the application for this variance, it must conduct a public hearing 
in order to receive written and oral comments from any interested person(s) concerning this 
request. 
 
This item is to conduct the public hearing. 
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   
 
Conduct a Public Hearing on the request of QT South, LLC, filed on behalf of owners Garfield 
Edmonds and Edmonds Company, for a variance to the Jersey Village Code of Ordinance at 
Chapter 14, Article IV, Division 2, Section 14-105, the Commercial Permitted Use and Conditional 
Use Table, to allow a gasoline filling station to be located in District H on a 6.150 acre tract of 
land conveyed in/under Harris County Clerk's File Nos. T303407 and 20120273382 and also 
identified as the properties located at 11518 FM 529 and 0 FM 529 (Corner of Jones and FM 529), 
which exceeds the minimum separation distance of 3,000 feet measured from property line to 
property line from any currently existing gasoline filling station.  

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

12



B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

13



B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

14



B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

15



B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

16



QT South, LLC 
 

ASA Division – San Antonio 
742 NW Loop 410 Ste. 102 

San Antonio, TX 78216 
210-332-4025 

 
 
 

QT Variance Request 
 

 QuikTrip is requesting a 2890’ variance to the separation distance provision in Sec 14-

105 Commercial Permitted and Conditional Use Tables. This variance would allow construction 

of a convenience store with gasoline and diesel sales at 11518 FM 529. This site is in Zone H 

and our use is permitted with conditions in this Zone. The conditions listed require a separation 

of 3000’ from any currently existing gasoline filling station and all storage tanks to be installed 

below the surface of the ground. There is a 7-11 approximately 110’ from our site, resulting in a 

need for a variance. 

 Granting this variance would allow QuikTrip to develop the vacant property at 11518 FM 

529 into a desirable use. This site has been carefully selected as an ideal location for a QuikTrip. 

Our station will increase competition and give customers a choice when it comes to filling up 

their vehicles and stopping for refreshments. QuikTrip will offer a family oriented, clean, and 

modern facility for the citizens of Jersey Village. QuikTrip takes great pride in our employees 

and our stores. We have an in-house Facility Support team that maintains our stores inside and 

out. We also have very strict employee appearance and uniform policies. Our facility also 

includes a QuikTrip Kitchen, which offers fresh made to order items and plenty of grab and go 

options. QuikTrip operates over 1000 stores throughout the country, all of which are corporately 

owned to ensure a consistent, high quality experience every time you visit. 

 We look forward to working with the staff of Jersey Village to bring a beautiful new 

QuikTrip to the community. Thank you for you consideration. 

Best Regards, 
 
 
 
Cathy Garland | Real Estate Project Manager 
cgarland@quiktrip.com 
(210) 332-4037  
 

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

17

mailto:cgarland@quiktrip.com


TCNK (P-111)
STORE NO.: 0000

7,318 S.F.
BLDG. HT.= 20'-0"

ICE KIOSK

0

INITIAL SITE PLAN

0 4040 8020
Feet

N

00
00

12
34

5 
S.

 M
AI

N 
ST

RE
ET

AN
YT

OW
N,

 U
SA

######

P-111 (08/01/22)

001

Qu
ikT

rip
 N

o.

A

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

DIVISION:

DESIGNED BY:

1

©  COPYRIGHT QUIKTRIP CORPORATION 2011
ANY UNAUTHORIZED USE, REPRODUCTION,
PUBLICATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR SALE IN
WHOLE OR IN PART, IS STRICTLY FORBIDDEN.

OR
IG

IN
AL

 IS
SU

E 
DA

TE
:

PROTOTYPE:

VERSION:

PROJECT NO.:

DRAWN BY:
REVIEWED BY:

RE
V

DA
TE

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

18

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNRESTRICTED RESERVE "A" 3.897 ACRES JONES 529 RETAIL (FILM CODE NO. 696873, M.R.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALLED 0.7829 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT TO COUNTY OF HARRIS (DOCUMENT NO. 20070503186, R.P.R.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALLED 7.922 ACRES GARFIELD J. EDMONDS, III, TRUSTEE (DOCUMENT NO. H008704, R.P.R.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHN DEMENT SURVEY ABSTRACT 228

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 48A 2.7548 ACRES RESTRICTED TO COMMERCIAL USE TEXAS HOT SHOT ADDITION (FILM CODE NO. 375023, M.P.R.) OWNER: UV LOGISTICS LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 42 FAIRVIEW GARDENS (VOLUME 10, PAGE 46, M.R.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 43 FAIRVIEW GARDENS (VOLUME 10, PAGE 46, M.R.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAFFIC SIGNAL CABINET

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICV x2

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICV

AutoCAD SHX Text
TPED

AutoCAD SHX Text
STSP

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BLDG. LINE (FILM CODE NO. 375023, M.P.R.)-10.o,10.ac

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BLDG. LINE (FILM CODE NO. 375023, M.P.R.)-10.o,10.ac

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.5' BLDG. LINE (FILM CODE NO. 375023, M.P.R.)-10.o,10.ac

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.5' BLDG. LINE (FILM CODE NO. 375023, M.P.R.)-10.o,10.ac

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' UTILITY EASEMENT (FILM CODE NO. 375023, M.P.R.)-10.l

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' UTILITY EASEMENT (FILM CODE NO. 375023, M.P.R.)-10.l

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALLED 7.922 ACRES GARFIELD J. EDMONDS, III, TRUSTEE (DOCUMENT NO. H008704, R.P.R.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH/WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
FHC

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TS

AutoCAD SHX Text
JBOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
JBOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
"COMCAST" EPED

AutoCAD SHX Text
EM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EM

AutoCAD SHX Text
"INTERSETION AHEAD 35 M.P.H."

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.Y.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.Y.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.W.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.W.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.W.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.W.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.W.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.W.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.W.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.W.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.W.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.W.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.Y.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.W.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.W.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.W.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.W.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.W.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.W.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.W.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.W.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.W.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.W.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.W.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.W.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CROSSWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
TS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICV

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICV

AutoCAD SHX Text
STSP

AutoCAD SHX Text
AGWV

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICV x2

AutoCAD SHX Text
AGWV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICV

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICV

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICV

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAFFIC SIGNAL VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPG.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDMH #7

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDMH #2

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
"TRAFFIC SIGNAL AHEAD"

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE APPROACH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE APPROACH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE APPROACH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH #1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH #2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH #3

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH #4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH #5

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALLED 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT TO COUNTY OF HARRIS (DOCUMENT NO. 20070245178, R.P.R.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.M. 529 120' PUBLIC R.O.W. TxDOT A.K.A. SPENCER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
THOMAS NELLIS SURVEY ABSTRACT 605

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" RCP *NOT EXPOSED*

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE APPROACH

AutoCAD SHX Text
GI #2

AutoCAD SHX Text
GI #3

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRC

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRC

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED HEIGHT: 6.97

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINGLE STORY BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING HEIGHT: 15.28'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
31.6'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
31.6'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRESHWATER EMERGENT WETLAND - PEM1A *SEE NOTE 10

AutoCAD SHX Text
GI #8

AutoCAD SHX Text
GI #9

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDMH #8

AutoCAD SHX Text
GI #10

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
A/C

AutoCAD SHX Text
EM

AutoCAD SHX Text
MP

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALLED 1.98779 ACRES THE EDMONDS COMPANY SOUTHWEST II (FILM CODE NO. 521-74-0872, R.P.R.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALLED 1.5632 ACRE  PERPETUAL ROAD EASEMENT (CLERK'S NO. 20070677705 & 20080047018, O.P.R.)-10.m

AutoCAD SHX Text
S87° 04' 07"W  185.34'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALLED 4.0026 ACRES THE EDMONDS COMPANY SOUTHWEST II (DOCUMENT NO. T303407, R.P.R.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALLED 2.1282 ACRES GARFIELD J. EDMONDS, III (DOCUMENT NO. 20120273382, R.P.R.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 48B 2.0701 ACRES RESTRICTED TO COMMERCIAL USE TEXAS HOT SHOT ADDITION (FILM CODE NO. 375023, M.P.R.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 49 FAIRVIEW GARDENS (VOLUME 10, PAGE 46, M.R.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.150 ACRES 267,894 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
N02° 32' 08"W  648.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N87° 04' 07"E  364.89'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S13° 50' 41"E  161.90'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text
L2

AutoCAD SHX Text
S87° 09' 23"W  185.12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S87° 09' 23"W  404.89'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDMH #1

AutoCAD SHX Text
JONES ROAD VARIABLE WIDTH R.O.W. *PORTIONS UNDER CONSTRUCTION*

AutoCAD SHX Text
GI #1

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPRESSOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
IDB-20

AutoCAD SHX Text
CL-60-F

AutoCAD SHX Text
IDB-20

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE LOCATION:C:\Vault_QT\89 Remote TC\89-7956\00 QuikDraw\89-7956 - ISP OPT1.dwg  TAB NAME:Site (ISP)  USER:tmckay  SAVED:1/12/2023 5:22 PM  PLOTTED:1/16/2023 1:47 PMC:\Vault_QT\89 Remote TC\89-7956\00 QuikDraw\89-7956 - ISP OPT1.dwg  TAB NAME:Site (ISP)  USER:tmckay  SAVED:1/12/2023 5:22 PM  PLOTTED:1/16/2023 1:47 PM  TAB NAME:Site (ISP)  USER:tmckay  SAVED:1/12/2023 5:22 PM  PLOTTED:1/16/2023 1:47 PMSite (ISP)  USER:tmckay  SAVED:1/12/2023 5:22 PM  PLOTTED:1/16/2023 1:47 PM  USER:tmckay  SAVED:1/12/2023 5:22 PM  PLOTTED:1/16/2023 1:47 PMtmckay  SAVED:1/12/2023 5:22 PM  PLOTTED:1/16/2023 1:47 PM  SAVED:1/12/2023 5:22 PM  PLOTTED:1/16/2023 1:47 PM1/12/2023 5:22 PM  PLOTTED:1/16/2023 1:47 PM  PLOTTED:1/16/2023 1:47 PM1/16/2023 1:47 PM



N

30 15 0 30 60 C020

SURVEY PLAN

Q
u
i
k
T
r
i
p
 
N

o
.

A

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

DIVISION:

DESIGNED BY:

1

©  COPYRIGHT QUIKTRIP CORPORATION 2011

ANY UNAUTHORIZED USE, REPRODUCTION,

PUBLICATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR SALE IN

WHOLE OR IN PART, IS STRICTLY FORBIDDEN.

O
R
I
G

I
N

A
L
 
I
S
S
U

E
 
D

A
T
E
:

PROTOTYPE:

VERSION:

PROJECT NO.:

DRAWN BY:

REVIEWED BY:

R
E
V

D
A
T
E

D
E
S
C
R
I
P
T
I
O

N

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

7
9
5
6

1
1
5
1
8
 
F
M

 
5
2
9

H
O

U
S
T
O

N
,
 
T
X
 
7
7
0
4
1

22-4158

89

KP/AB

KP

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
&

 S
U

R
V

E
Y

IN
G

8 
SP

E
N

C
E

R
 R

O
A

D
 S

U
IT

E
 3

00
B

O
E

R
N

E
, T

E
X

A
S 

78
00

6
O

FF
IC

E
: 8

30
.2

49
.0

60
0 

  F
A

X
:8

30
.2

49
.0

09
9

C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

S 
   

 S
U

R
V

E
Y

O
R

S 
   

 L
A

N
D

 P
L

A
N

N
E

R
S

C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 M
A

N
A

G
E

R
S 

   
C

O
N

SU
L

T
A

N
T

S

B
O

E
R

N
E

, T
E

X
A

S 
R

E
G

IS
T

E
R

E
D

 S
U

R
V

E
Y

IN
G

 F
IR

M
 F

-1
00

24
00

0
B

O
E

R
N

E
, T

E
X

A
S 

R
E

G
IS

T
E

R
E

D
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

 F
IR

M
 F

-0
04

51
2

33
03

 S
H

E
L

L
 R

O
A

D
 S

U
IT

E
 3

G
E

O
R

G
E

T
O

W
N

, T
E

X
A

S 
78

62
8

O
FF

IC
E

: 5
12

.8
68

.2
24

4

H
E

A
D

Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
S

G
E

O
R

G
E

T
O

W
N

, T
E

X
A

S 
R

E
G

IS
T

E
R

E
D

 S
U

R
V

E
Y

IN
G

 F
IR

M
 F

-1
01

94
34

7

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

19

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALLED 0.7829 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT TO COUNTY OF HARRIS (DOCUMENT NO. 20070503186, R.P.R.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALLED 7.922 ACRES GARFIELD J. EDMONDS, III, TRUSTEE (DOCUMENT NO. H008704, R.P.R.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHN DEMENT SURVEY ABSTRACT 228

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 48A 2.7548 ACRES RESTRICTED TO COMMERCIAL USE TEXAS HOT SHOT ADDITION (FILM CODE NO. 375023, M.P.R.) OWNER: UV LOGISTICS LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 42 FAIRVIEW GARDENS (VOLUME 10, PAGE 46, M.R.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 43 FAIRVIEW GARDENS (VOLUME 10, PAGE 46, M.R.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAFFIC SIGNAL CABINET

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICV x2

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICV

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDMH #4

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BLDG. LINE (FILM CODE NO. 375023, M.P.R.)-10.o,10.ac

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BLDG. LINE (FILM CODE NO. 375023, M.P.R.)-10.o,10.ac

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.5' BLDG. LINE (FILM CODE NO. 375023, M.P.R.)-10.o,10.ac

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.5' BLDG. LINE (FILM CODE NO. 375023, M.P.R.)-10.o,10.ac

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' UTILITY EASEMENT (FILM CODE NO. 375023, M.P.R.)-10.l

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALLED 7.922 ACRES GARFIELD J. EDMONDS, III, TRUSTEE (DOCUMENT NO. H008704, R.P.R.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
"TIME WARNER" JBOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
C&G

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FHC

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
"AT&T" EPED

AutoCAD SHX Text
"TIME WARNER" JBOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
TS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TS

AutoCAD SHX Text
JBOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
JBOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
EM

AutoCAD SHX Text
"INTERSETION AHEAD 35 M.P.H."

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.W.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.W.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.W.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.W.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.Y.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.Y.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.W.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.W.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.Y.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.Y.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.Y.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.Y.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.W.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.W.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.W.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.W.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.W.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.W.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.W.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.W.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.W.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.W.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.Y.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.W.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.W.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.W.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CROSSWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.W.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.W.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.W.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.W.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.W.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CROSSWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CROSSWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
C&G

AutoCAD SHX Text
TS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICV

AutoCAD SHX Text
STSP

AutoCAD SHX Text
AGWV

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICV x2

AutoCAD SHX Text
AGWV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICV

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIBERNET" JBOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAFFIC SIGNAL VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPG.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDMH #7

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDMH #2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDMH #5

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
"TRAFFIC SIGNAL AHEAD"

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC:110.67' G:110.20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
EG:109.12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
EG:109.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
EG:109.64'

AutoCAD SHX Text
EP:108.83'

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE APPROACH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE APPROACH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE APPROACH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH #1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH #2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH #3

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH #4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH #5

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALLED 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT TO COUNTY OF HARRIS (DOCUMENT NO. 20070245178, R.P.R.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.M. 529 120' PUBLIC R.O.W. TxDOT A.K.A. SPENCER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
THOMAS NELLIS SURVEY ABSTRACT 605

AutoCAD SHX Text
GI #4

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE APPROACH

AutoCAD SHX Text
GI #2

AutoCAD SHX Text
GI #3

AutoCAD SHX Text
GI #5

AutoCAD SHX Text
GI#6

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.13

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.13

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.37

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.52

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.33

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
108.89

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.26

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.60

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
110.35

AutoCAD SHX Text
111.33

AutoCAD SHX Text
110.97

AutoCAD SHX Text
110.59

AutoCAD SHX Text
110.33

AutoCAD SHX Text
110.12

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.81

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.35

AutoCAD SHX Text
108.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.28

AutoCAD SHX Text
108.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
108.13

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
108.42

AutoCAD SHX Text
108.28

AutoCAD SHX Text
108.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
107.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
108.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
108.69

AutoCAD SHX Text
108.93

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.37

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
110.26

AutoCAD SHX Text
110.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.76

AutoCAD SHX Text
108.49

AutoCAD SHX Text
108.44

AutoCAD SHX Text
108.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
108.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
108.59

AutoCAD SHX Text
108.48

AutoCAD SHX Text
108.52

AutoCAD SHX Text
108.51

AutoCAD SHX Text
108.41

AutoCAD SHX Text
108.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.40

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.65

AutoCAD SHX Text
110.07

AutoCAD SHX Text
110.11

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.35

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.12

AutoCAD SHX Text
108.97

AutoCAD SHX Text
108.57

AutoCAD SHX Text
108.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
108.59

AutoCAD SHX Text
108.54

AutoCAD SHX Text
108.56

AutoCAD SHX Text
108.57

AutoCAD SHX Text
108.56

AutoCAD SHX Text
108.48

AutoCAD SHX Text
108.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.40

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.83

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.07

AutoCAD SHX Text
108.91

AutoCAD SHX Text
108.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
108.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
108.35

AutoCAD SHX Text
108.28

AutoCAD SHX Text
108.49

AutoCAD SHX Text
108.57

AutoCAD SHX Text
108.60

AutoCAD SHX Text
108.47

AutoCAD SHX Text
108.35

AutoCAD SHX Text
108.48

AutoCAD SHX Text
108.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.96

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.49

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.44

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
113.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
111.66

AutoCAD SHX Text
110.49

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.89

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.76

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.91

AutoCAD SHX Text
117.53

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.05

AutoCAD SHX Text
114.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.13

AutoCAD SHX Text
112.32

AutoCAD SHX Text
110.32

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.62

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
110.26

AutoCAD SHX Text
132.34

AutoCAD SHX Text
128.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
113.77

AutoCAD SHX Text
110.64

AutoCAD SHX Text
110.09

AutoCAD SHX Text
110.04

AutoCAD SHX Text
112.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
117.52

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.51

AutoCAD SHX Text
110.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
111.05

AutoCAD SHX Text
110.69

AutoCAD SHX Text
110.07

AutoCAD SHX Text
110.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
110.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
121.48

AutoCAD SHX Text
125.09

AutoCAD SHX Text
115.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
116.37

AutoCAD SHX Text
111.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
116.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
115.54

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.77

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.87

AutoCAD SHX Text
111.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
110.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
110.41

AutoCAD SHX Text
110.36

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.77

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.79

AutoCAD SHX Text
113.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
110.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
110.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
110.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
110.55

AutoCAD SHX Text
111.07

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.91

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.87

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.81

AutoCAD SHX Text
110.46

AutoCAD SHX Text
110.47

AutoCAD SHX Text
110.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.76

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.94

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.65

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.83

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.83

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.93

AutoCAD SHX Text
110.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
110.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.87

AutoCAD SHX Text
110.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
110.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
110.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
109.19

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED HEIGHT: 6.97

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINGLE STORY BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING HEIGHT: 15.28'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
31.6'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
31.6'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRESHWATER EMERGENT WETLAND - PEM1A *SEE NOTE 10

AutoCAD SHX Text
4097

AutoCAD SHX Text
4100

AutoCAD SHX Text
4101

AutoCAD SHX Text
4102

AutoCAD SHX Text
1591

AutoCAD SHX Text
1592

AutoCAD SHX Text
1593

AutoCAD SHX Text
1594

AutoCAD SHX Text
1595

AutoCAD SHX Text
1596

AutoCAD SHX Text
1597

AutoCAD SHX Text
1598

AutoCAD SHX Text
1599

AutoCAD SHX Text
1600

AutoCAD SHX Text
1601

AutoCAD SHX Text
1602

AutoCAD SHX Text
1603

AutoCAD SHX Text
1604

AutoCAD SHX Text
1605

AutoCAD SHX Text
1606

AutoCAD SHX Text
1607

AutoCAD SHX Text
1608

AutoCAD SHX Text
1609

AutoCAD SHX Text
1610

AutoCAD SHX Text
1611

AutoCAD SHX Text
1612

AutoCAD SHX Text
1613

AutoCAD SHX Text
1614

AutoCAD SHX Text
1615

AutoCAD SHX Text
1616

AutoCAD SHX Text
1617

AutoCAD SHX Text
1618

AutoCAD SHX Text
1619

AutoCAD SHX Text
1620

AutoCAD SHX Text
1621

AutoCAD SHX Text
1622

AutoCAD SHX Text
1623

AutoCAD SHX Text
1624

AutoCAD SHX Text
1625

AutoCAD SHX Text
1626

AutoCAD SHX Text
1627

AutoCAD SHX Text
1628

AutoCAD SHX Text
1629

AutoCAD SHX Text
1630

AutoCAD SHX Text
1631

AutoCAD SHX Text
1632

AutoCAD SHX Text
1633

AutoCAD SHX Text
1634

AutoCAD SHX Text
1635

AutoCAD SHX Text
1636

AutoCAD SHX Text
1637

AutoCAD SHX Text
1638

AutoCAD SHX Text
4098

AutoCAD SHX Text
4099

AutoCAD SHX Text
GI #8

AutoCAD SHX Text
GI #9

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDMH #8

AutoCAD SHX Text
GI #10

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
A/C

AutoCAD SHX Text
EM

AutoCAD SHX Text
MP

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALLED 1.98779 ACRES THE EDMONDS COMPANY SOUTHWEST II (FILM CODE NO. 521-74-0872, R.P.R.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALLED 1.5632 ACRE  PERPETUAL ROAD EASEMENT (CLERK'S NO. 20070677705 & 20080047018, O.P.R.)-10.m

AutoCAD SHX Text
110

AutoCAD SHX Text
110

AutoCAD SHX Text
109

AutoCAD SHX Text
110

AutoCAD SHX Text
112

AutoCAD SHX Text
115

AutoCAD SHX Text
118

AutoCAD SHX Text
120

AutoCAD SHX Text
123

AutoCAD SHX Text
125

AutoCAD SHX Text
128

AutoCAD SHX Text
130

AutoCAD SHX Text
133

AutoCAD SHX Text
130

AutoCAD SHX Text
128

AutoCAD SHX Text
125

AutoCAD SHX Text
123

AutoCAD SHX Text
120

AutoCAD SHX Text
117

AutoCAD SHX Text
115

AutoCAD SHX Text
112

AutoCAD SHX Text
110

AutoCAD SHX Text
108

AutoCAD SHX Text
128

AutoCAD SHX Text
125

AutoCAD SHX Text
122

AutoCAD SHX Text
120

AutoCAD SHX Text
118

AutoCAD SHX Text
115

AutoCAD SHX Text
112

AutoCAD SHX Text
125

AutoCAD SHX Text
123

AutoCAD SHX Text
120

AutoCAD SHX Text
117

AutoCAD SHX Text
115

AutoCAD SHX Text
112

AutoCAD SHX Text
110

AutoCAD SHX Text
123

AutoCAD SHX Text
120

AutoCAD SHX Text
118

AutoCAD SHX Text
115

AutoCAD SHX Text
112

AutoCAD SHX Text
110

AutoCAD SHX Text
117

AutoCAD SHX Text
115

AutoCAD SHX Text
113

AutoCAD SHX Text
110

AutoCAD SHX Text
110

AutoCAD SHX Text
110

AutoCAD SHX Text
112

AutoCAD SHX Text
115

AutoCAD SHX Text
118

AutoCAD SHX Text
117

AutoCAD SHX Text
115

AutoCAD SHX Text
112

AutoCAD SHX Text
110

AutoCAD SHX Text
116

AutoCAD SHX Text
115

AutoCAD SHX Text
113

AutoCAD SHX Text
110

AutoCAD SHX Text
115

AutoCAD SHX Text
113

AutoCAD SHX Text
110

AutoCAD SHX Text
119

AutoCAD SHX Text
116

AutoCAD SHX Text
113

AutoCAD SHX Text
110

AutoCAD SHX Text
109

AutoCAD SHX Text
109

AutoCAD SHX Text
109

AutoCAD SHX Text
110

AutoCAD SHX Text
109

AutoCAD SHX Text
109

AutoCAD SHX Text
110

AutoCAD SHX Text
S87° 04' 07"W  185.34'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALLED 4.0026 ACRES THE EDMONDS COMPANY SOUTHWEST II (DOCUMENT NO. T303407, R.P.R.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALLED 2.1282 ACRES GARFIELD J. EDMONDS, III (DOCUMENT NO. 20120273382, R.P.R.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 48B 2.0701 ACRES RESTRICTED TO COMMERCIAL USE TEXAS HOT SHOT ADDITION (FILM CODE NO. 375023, M.P.R.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 49 FAIRVIEW GARDENS (VOLUME 10, PAGE 46, M.R.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.150 ACRES 267,894 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
N02° 32' 08"W  648.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N87° 04' 07"E  364.89'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S13° 50' 41"E  161.90'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text
L2

AutoCAD SHX Text
S87° 09' 23"W  185.12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S87° 09' 23"W  404.89'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDMH #1

AutoCAD SHX Text
JONES ROAD VARIABLE WIDTH R.O.W. *PORTIONS UNDER CONSTRUCTION*

AutoCAD SHX Text
GI #1

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
KYLE L. PRESSLER

AutoCAD SHX Text
6528



N

C020

SURVEY PLAN

Q
u
i
k
T
r
i
p
 
N

o
.

A

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

DIVISION:

DESIGNED BY:

1

©  COPYRIGHT QUIKTRIP CORPORATION 2011

ANY UNAUTHORIZED USE, REPRODUCTION,

PUBLICATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR SALE IN

WHOLE OR IN PART, IS STRICTLY FORBIDDEN.

O
R
I
G

I
N

A
L
 
I
S
S
U

E
 
D

A
T
E
:

PROTOTYPE:

VERSION:

PROJECT NO.:

DRAWN BY:

REVIEWED BY:

R
E
V

D
A
T
E

D
E
S
C
R
I
P
T
I
O

N

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

7
9
5
6

1
1
5
1
8
 
F
M

 
5
2
9

H
O

U
S
T
O

N
,
 
T
X
 
7
7
0
4
1

22-4158

89

KP/AB

KP

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
&

 S
U

R
V

E
Y

IN
G

8 
SP

E
N

C
E

R
 R

O
A

D
 S

U
IT

E
 3

00
B

O
E

R
N

E
, T

E
X

A
S 

78
00

6
O

FF
IC

E
: 8

30
.2

49
.0

60
0 

  F
A

X
:8

30
.2

49
.0

09
9

C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

S 
   

 S
U

R
V

E
Y

O
R

S 
   

 L
A

N
D

 P
L

A
N

N
E

R
S

C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 M
A

N
A

G
E

R
S 

   
C

O
N

SU
L

T
A

N
T

S

B
O

E
R

N
E

, T
E

X
A

S 
R

E
G

IS
T

E
R

E
D

 S
U

R
V

E
Y

IN
G

 F
IR

M
 F

-1
00

24
00

0
B

O
E

R
N

E
, T

E
X

A
S 

R
E

G
IS

T
E

R
E

D
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

 F
IR

M
 F

-0
04

51
2

33
03

 S
H

E
L

L
 R

O
A

D
 S

U
IT

E
 3

G
E

O
R

G
E

T
O

W
N

, T
E

X
A

S 
78

62
8

O
FF

IC
E

: 5
12

.8
68

.2
24

4

H
E

A
D

Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
S

G
E

O
R

G
E

T
O

W
N

, T
E

X
A

S 
R

E
G

IS
T

E
R

E
D

 S
U

R
V

E
Y

IN
G

 F
IR

M
 F

-1
01

94
34

7

“ ” “ ” 

” “ ”

” “ ”
”

”
”

“ ”

” “ ”
”

”

” “ ”

” ”

” ” ”

” ”
” ”

”

X X X X X X X X X X

SURVEY LEGEND

ABBREVIATIONS

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

20

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE TABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text
L2

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text
S02° 11' 45"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S42° 40' 16"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISTANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
66.67'

AutoCAD SHX Text
41.12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURVE TABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1950.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
396.45'

AutoCAD SHX Text
DELTA

AutoCAD SHX Text
11°38'55"

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHORD BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text
S08° 01' 13"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHORD LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
395.77'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATION MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
U.S. 290

AutoCAD SHX Text
JONES RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHARLES RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FM 529

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
KYLE L. PRESSLER

AutoCAD SHX Text
6528

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO QT SOUTH, LLC, GARFIELD JAMES EDMONDS III, AND THE EDMONDS COMPANY SOUTHWEST II: THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS, JOINTLY ESTABLISHED AND ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1,2,3,4,5,6(a)(b),7(a)(b)(1)(c),8,9,11(a)(b),13,14,16,17,18, & 20 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELDWORK WAS COMPLETED ON DECEMBER 8, 2022. KYLE L. PRESSLER        DATE: DECEMBER 21, 2022 REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR TEXAS REGISTRATION NO. 6528  KYLE.PRESSLER@MATKINHOOVER.COM JOB NO. 22-4158 8 SPENCER ROAD, SUITE 300, BOERNE TEXAS, 78006

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
KYLE L. PRESSLER

AutoCAD SHX Text
6528

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEY OF: A 6.150 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, LOCATED IN THE JOHN DEMENT SURVEY, ABSTRACT 228, HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, AND BEING ALL OF A CALLED 2.1282 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS DESCRIBED OF RECORD IN DOCUMENT NO. 20120273382, AND ALL OF A CALLED 4.0026 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS DESCRIBED OF RECORD IN DOCUMENT NO. T303407, BOTH OF THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS. SAID 6.150 ACRE TRACT OF LAND ALSO BEING ALL OF LOT 48B OF THE TEXAS HOT SHOT ADDITION OF RECORD IN FILM CODE NO. 375023, AND A PORTION OF LOT 49 OF THE FAIRVIEW GARDENS SUBDIVISION OF RECORD IN VOLUME 10, PAGE 46, BOTH OF THE MAP RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES 1. BEARINGS ARE BASED ON THE STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM ESTABLISHED FOR THE TEXAS SOUTH CENTRAL ZONE 4204, NORTH AMERICAN DATUM (NAD) OF 1983. COMBINED ADJUSTED SCALE FACTOR: 1.0000924209. 2. REFERENCED PROPERTY IS IN ZONE X, OTHER FLOOD AREAS, AREAS OF 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD; AREAS OF 1% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD WITH AVERAGE DEPTHS OF LESS THAN 1 FOOT OR WITH DRAINAGE AREAS LESS THAN 1 SQUARE MILE; AND AREAS PROTECTED BY LEVEES FROM 1% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD, AS SHOWN ON FEMA FLOOD PANEL 440 OF 1150, MAP NO. 48201C0440N, DATED NOVEMBER 15, 2019.  3. THE TRACT SHOWN HEREON MAY BE SUBJECT TO ALL CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE & HARRIS COUNTY ORDINANCES AND RESTRICTIONS. THE SUBJECT TRACT IS LOCATED WITHIN THE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE. 4. METES AND BOUNDS WERE PREPARED BY SEPARATE INSTRUMENT.  5. UTILITIES - WATER - SHOWN HEREON PER A COMBINATION OF FIELD OBSERVED EVIDENCE, MARKINGS PROVIDED BY OTHERS AND PLANS PROVIDED FROM THE CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE AND TxDOT.  WATER - SHOWN HEREON PER A COMBINATION OF FIELD OBSERVED EVIDENCE, MARKINGS PROVIDED BY OTHERS AND PLANS PROVIDED FROM THE CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE AND TxDOT.  - WASTEWATER - SHOWN HEREON PER FIELD OBSERVED EVIDENCE AND PLANS PROVIDED FROM THE CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE. WASTEWATER - SHOWN HEREON PER FIELD OBSERVED EVIDENCE AND PLANS PROVIDED FROM THE CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE. - GAS - SHOWN HEREON PER FIELD OBSERVED MARKINGS PLACED BY OTHERS.   GAS - SHOWN HEREON PER FIELD OBSERVED MARKINGS PLACED BY OTHERS.   - ELECTRIC - OVERHEAD ELECTRIC SHOWN HEREON PER FIELD OBSERVED EVIDENCE AND MARKINGS PROVIDED BY OTHERS. ELECTRIC - OVERHEAD ELECTRIC SHOWN HEREON PER FIELD OBSERVED EVIDENCE AND MARKINGS PROVIDED BY OTHERS. - FIBER OPTIC & TELEPHONE - SHOWN PER FIELD OBSERVED MARKINGS PROVIDED BY OTHERS, AND FIELD OBSERVED APPURTENANCES. FIBER OPTIC & TELEPHONE - SHOWN PER FIELD OBSERVED MARKINGS PROVIDED BY OTHERS, AND FIELD OBSERVED APPURTENANCES. -   STORM SEWER - SHOWN HEREON PER A COMBINATION OF FIELD OBSERVED EVIDENCE, AND PLANS PROVIDED FROM THE CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE AND TxDOT.  "ONE-CALL" SERVICE WAS ORDERED ON 11-30-2022, A FIELD CREW PERFORMED A SITE VISIT ON 12/04/2022-12/08/2022 TO LOCATE ANY VISIBLE MARKINGS. BELOW ARE THE RESPONSES FROM PROVIDERS THAT WERE NOTIFIED PER RESPONSE FROM “TEXAS811LOCATES.ORG” TO SAID “ONE-CALL” REQUEST, TICKET NO. 2283426905: TEXAS811LOCATES.ORG” TO SAID “ONE-CALL” REQUEST, TICKET NO. 2283426905: TO SAID “ONE-CALL” REQUEST, TICKET NO. 2283426905: ONE-CALL” REQUEST, TICKET NO. 2283426905: REQUEST, TICKET NO. 2283426905: 2283426905: CODE:     NAME:        FACILITIES:        RESPONSE: NAME:        FACILITIES:        RESPONSE: FACILITIES:        RESPONSE: RESPONSE: ABOVE01     ZAYO GROUP       ELECTRIC,FIBER       CLEAR ZAYO GROUP       ELECTRIC,FIBER       CLEAR ELECTRIC,FIBER       CLEAR CLEAR CJV      CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE     SEWER,WATER,OTHER      LOCATED CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE     SEWER,WATER,OTHER      LOCATED SEWER,WATER,OTHER      LOCATED LOCATED COMST     COMCAST HOUSTON      PHONE,FIBER       CLEAR COMCAST HOUSTON      PHONE,FIBER       CLEAR PHONE,FIBER       CLEAR CLEAR CPTEN01     CENTERPOINT ENERGY     GAS,ELECTRIC,FIBER      CANNOT LOCATE/FACILITIES IN SCOPE CENTERPOINT ENERGY     GAS,ELECTRIC,FIBER      CANNOT LOCATE/FACILITIES IN SCOPE GAS,ELECTRIC,FIBER      CANNOT LOCATE/FACILITIES IN SCOPE CANNOT LOCATE/FACILITIES IN SCOPE CPTEN02     CENTERPOINT ENERGY     GAS,ELECTRIC,FIBER      CANNOT LOCATE/FACILITIES IN SCOPE CENTERPOINT ENERGY     GAS,ELECTRIC,FIBER      CANNOT LOCATE/FACILITIES IN SCOPE GAS,ELECTRIC,FIBER      CANNOT LOCATE/FACILITIES IN SCOPE CANNOT LOCATE/FACILITIES IN SCOPE ERVIN02     ERVIN CABLE CONSTRUCTION    CABLE        CLEAR ERVIN CABLE CONSTRUCTION    CABLE        CLEAR CABLE        CLEAR CLEAR L3CTX01     CENTURYLINK       PHONE,FIBER,CABLE      CLEAR CENTURYLINK       PHONE,FIBER,CABLE      CLEAR PHONE,FIBER,CABLE      CLEAR CLEAR LIX      LOGIX COMMUNICATIONS INC.    PHONE,FIBER       LOCATED   LOGIX COMMUNICATIONS INC.    PHONE,FIBER       LOCATED   PHONE,FIBER       LOCATED   LOCATED   MCT      MCI         FIBER        CLEAR MCI         FIBER        CLEAR FIBER        CLEAR CLEAR NPN      CROWN CASTLE       ELECTRIC,PHONE,FIBER     CLEAR CROWN CASTLE       ELECTRIC,PHONE,FIBER     CLEAR ELECTRIC,PHONE,FIBER     CLEAR CLEAR OIN      OCEANEERING INTERNATIONAL INC.   GAS OCEANEERING INTERNATIONAL INC.   GAS GAS PSC02     PHONOSCOPE INC.      PHONE,CABLE,FIBER      CLEAR PHONOSCOPE INC.      PHONE,CABLE,FIBER      CLEAR PHONE,CABLE,FIBER      CLEAR CLEAR TXS2      AT&T         PHONE        CLEAR AT&T         PHONE        CLEAR PHONE        CLEAR CLEAR WINTX     WINDSTREAM       PHONE,FIBER       CLEAR WINDSTREAM       PHONE,FIBER       CLEAR PHONE,FIBER       CLEAR CLEAR 6. VERTICAL RELIEF WAS MADE FROM AN ON THE GROUND SURVEY, CONTOURS SHOWN HEREON ARE AT 1' INTERVALS USING THE NORTH AMERICAN VERTICAL DATUM OF 1988 (NAVD 88), GEOID 18. SITE VERTICAL WAS ESTABLISHED BY USING THE TRIMBLE VRS NETWORK AND CONFIRMED BY CHECKING INTO NATIONAL GEODETIC SURVEY BENCHMARK PID "DR8220" WITH AN NAVD ORTHOMETRIC HEIGHT OF 109.2'. 7. THE PROPERTY IS CURRENTLY LOCATED IN ZONE "H" - INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT ACCORDING TO THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE, TEXAS, DATED 4/19/2021. THE PROPERTY IS CURRENTLY LOCATED IN ZONE "H" - INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT ACCORDING TO THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE, TEXAS, DATED 4/19/2021. SEC. 14-107. - REGULATIONS FOR DISTRICT H (INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT). (B)HEIGHT AND AREA REGULATIONS. (1)HEIGHT. NO LIMITATION.  (2)BUILDING AREA. NO LIMITATIONS. (3)LOCATION LOT. ALL BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURES SHALL CONFORM TO THE SETBACK STANDARDS ESTABLISHED IN SUBSECTION 14-88(B). SEC. 14-88. - REGULATIONS THAT APPLY TO ALL DISTRICTS. (B)BUILDING SETBACKS. UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY PROVIDED ELSEWHERE IN THIS ARTICLE, ALL BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURES LOCATED IN A DISTRICT WITHIN THE  CITY SHALL CONFORM TO THE FOLLOWING SETBACKS (AS MEASURED FROM THE PROPERTY LINE): LOT LINE   SETBACK (IN FEET)    MODIFIER SETBACK (IN FEET)    MODIFIER MODIFIER FRONT   25'        25'        REAR    25'       EXCLUDING FENCING 25'       EXCLUDING FENCING EXCLUDING FENCING SIDE STREET  10'       25' WHERE ONE OR MORE LOTS HAVE FRONTAGE ON THE STREET. 10'       25' WHERE ONE OR MORE LOTS HAVE FRONTAGE ON THE STREET. 25' WHERE ONE OR MORE LOTS HAVE FRONTAGE ON THE STREET. SIDE    7-1/2'      ZERO FEET FOR TOWNHOUSES AND ONE SIDE PATIO HOMES. 7-1/2'      ZERO FEET FOR TOWNHOUSES AND ONE SIDE PATIO HOMES. ZERO FEET FOR TOWNHOUSES AND ONE SIDE PATIO HOMES. 8. SUBJECT TRACT IS LOCATED AT THE NWC OF F.M. 529 AND JONES RD. SUBJECT TRACT IS LOCATED AT THE NWC OF F.M. 529 AND JONES RD. 9. THERE WAS EVIDENCE OF RECENT STREET CONSTRUCTION OR REPAIR AT TIME OF SURVEY. THERE WAS EVIDENCE OF RECENT STREET CONSTRUCTION OR REPAIR AT TIME OF SURVEY. 10. THERE IS EVIDENCE OF WETLANDS ACCORDING TO: HTTP://WWW.FWS.GOV/WETLANDS/DATA/MAPPER.HTML. THERE WERE NO WETLAND AREAS DELINEATED OR FIELD MARKED BY THE THERE IS EVIDENCE OF WETLANDS ACCORDING TO: HTTP://WWW.FWS.GOV/WETLANDS/DATA/MAPPER.HTML. THERE WERE NO WETLAND AREAS DELINEATED OR FIELD MARKED BY THE APPROPRIATE AUTHORITIES AT THE TIME OF THIS SURVEY. CLASSIFICATION CODE: PEM1A SYSTEM PALUSTRINE (P) : THE PALUSTRINE SYSTEM INCLUDES ALL NONTIDAL WETLANDS DOMINATED BY TREES, SHRUBS, PERSISTENT EMERGENTS, EMERGENT MOSSES OR LICHENS, AND ALL PALUSTRINE (P) : THE PALUSTRINE SYSTEM INCLUDES ALL NONTIDAL WETLANDS DOMINATED BY TREES, SHRUBS, PERSISTENT EMERGENTS, EMERGENT MOSSES OR LICHENS, AND ALL  : THE PALUSTRINE SYSTEM INCLUDES ALL NONTIDAL WETLANDS DOMINATED BY TREES, SHRUBS, PERSISTENT EMERGENTS, EMERGENT MOSSES OR LICHENS, AND ALL SUCH WETLANDS THAT OCCUR IN TIDAL AREAS WHERE SALINITY DUE TO OCEAN-DERIVED SALTS IS BELOW 0.5 PPT. IT ALSO INCLUDES WETLANDS LACKING SUCH VEGETATION, BUT WITH ALL OF THE FOLLOWING FOUR CHARACTERISTICS: (1) AREA LESS THAN 8 HA (20 ACRES); (2) ACTIVE WAVE-FORMED OR BEDROCK SHORELINE FEATURES LACKING; (3) WATER DEPTH IN THE DEEPEST PART OF BASIN LESS THAN 2.5 M (8.2 FT) AT LOW WATER; AND (4) SALINITY DUE TO OCEAN-DERIVED SALTS LESS THAN 0.5 PPT. CLASS EMERGENT (EM) : CHARACTERIZED BY ERECT, ROOTED, HERBACEOUS HYDROPHYTES, EXCLUDING MOSSES AND LICHENS. THIS VEGETATION IS PRESENT FOR MOST OF THE GROWING EMERGENT (EM) : CHARACTERIZED BY ERECT, ROOTED, HERBACEOUS HYDROPHYTES, EXCLUDING MOSSES AND LICHENS. THIS VEGETATION IS PRESENT FOR MOST OF THE GROWING  : CHARACTERIZED BY ERECT, ROOTED, HERBACEOUS HYDROPHYTES, EXCLUDING MOSSES AND LICHENS. THIS VEGETATION IS PRESENT FOR MOST OF THE GROWING SEASON IN MOST YEARS. THESE WETLANDS ARE USUALLY DOMINATED BY PERENNIAL PLANTS. SUBCLASS PERSISTENT (1) : DOMINATED BY SPECIES THAT NORMALLY REMAIN STANDING AT LEAST UNTIL THE BEGINNING OF THE NEXT GROWING SEASON. THIS SUBCLASS IS FOUND ONLY IN PERSISTENT (1) : DOMINATED BY SPECIES THAT NORMALLY REMAIN STANDING AT LEAST UNTIL THE BEGINNING OF THE NEXT GROWING SEASON. THIS SUBCLASS IS FOUND ONLY IN  : DOMINATED BY SPECIES THAT NORMALLY REMAIN STANDING AT LEAST UNTIL THE BEGINNING OF THE NEXT GROWING SEASON. THIS SUBCLASS IS FOUND ONLY IN THE ESTUARINE AND PALUSTRINE SYSTEMS. WATER REGIME TEMPORARY FLOODED (A) : SURFACE WATER IS PRESENT FOR BRIEF PERIODS (FROM A FEW DAYS TO A FEW WEEKS) DURING THE GROWING SEASON, BUT THE WATER TABLE TEMPORARY FLOODED (A) : SURFACE WATER IS PRESENT FOR BRIEF PERIODS (FROM A FEW DAYS TO A FEW WEEKS) DURING THE GROWING SEASON, BUT THE WATER TABLE  : SURFACE WATER IS PRESENT FOR BRIEF PERIODS (FROM A FEW DAYS TO A FEW WEEKS) DURING THE GROWING SEASON, BUT THE WATER TABLE USUALLY LIES WELL BELOW THE GROUND SURFACE FOR THE MOST OF THE SEASON. 11. THE NEAREST FIRE HYDRANT LIES N 81°56'23" E A DISTANCE OF 99.32' FROM THE SOUTHEAST PROPERTY CORNER OF THE SUBJECT TRACT.   12.UTILITY CONTACT INFORMATION: ELECTRIC SERVICES CENTERPOINT ENERGY - PHONE: 1-800-332-7143 GAS SERVICES CENTERPOINT ENERGY - PHONE: 1-800-752-8036 TELEPHONE, FIBER AND CABLE SERVICES (AS OBSERVED) AT&T - PHONE: (832) 604-7735  ZAYO GROUP - PHONE: 713-466-2111 CENTURYLINK - PHONE: (281) 618-3900 WATER AND SEWER SERVICE  CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE - PHONE: 713-466-2100 13. ADJOINING CURB CUTS ARE AS FOLLOWS: 1. A CONCRETE APPROACH INTERSECTS THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY OF SPENCER RD. APPROXIMATELY 33' IN A WESTERLY DIRECTION FROM THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE SUBJECT TRACT. A CONCRETE APPROACH INTERSECTS THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY OF SPENCER RD. APPROXIMATELY 33' IN A WESTERLY DIRECTION FROM THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE SUBJECT TRACT. 2. THE INTERSECTION OF CHARLES RD. IS APPROXIMATELY 675' FEET IN A NORTHERLY DIRECTION ALONG THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY OF JONES RD. FROM THE NORTHEAST PROPERTY CORNER THE INTERSECTION OF CHARLES RD. IS APPROXIMATELY 675' FEET IN A NORTHERLY DIRECTION ALONG THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY OF JONES RD. FROM THE NORTHEAST PROPERTY CORNER OF THE SUBJECT TRACT.  14. THERE ARE CURRENTLY NO DESIGNATED PARKING SPACES (BY STRIPING) LOCATED ON SUBJECT TRACT. THERE ARE CURRENTLY NO DESIGNATED PARKING SPACES (BY STRIPING) LOCATED ON SUBJECT TRACT. 15. SURVEYOR IS UNAWARE OF ANY PROPOSED CHANGES TO STREET RIGHT-OF-WAY LINES.  16. THERE IS NO EVIDENCE OF RECENT BUILDING CONSTRUCTION OR DEMOLITION WORK AT THE TIME OF THIS SURVEY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIELD NOTES FOR A 6.150 ACRE TRACT OF LAND A 6.150 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, LOCATED IN THE JOHN DEMENT SURVEY, ABSTRACT 228, HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, AND BEING ALL OF A CALLED 2.1282 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS DESCRIBED OF RECORD IN DOCUMENT NO. 20120273382, AND ALL OF A CALLED 4.0026 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS DESCRIBED OF RECORD IN DOCUMENT NO. T303407, BOTH OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS. SAID 6.150 ACRE TRACT OF LAND ALSO BEING ALL OF LOT 48B OF THE TEXAS HOT SHOT ADDITION OF RECORD IN FILM CODE NO. 375023, AND A PORTION OF LOT 49 OF THE FAIRVIEW GARDENS SUBDIVISION OF RECORD IN VOLUME 10, PAGE 46, BOTH OF THE MAP RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS. SAID 6.150 ACRE TRACT BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED BY METES AND BOUNDS AS FOLLOWS: BEGINNING AT A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD WITH AN ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN THE NORTH  AT A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD WITH AN ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN THE NORTH AT A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD WITH AN ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN THE NORTH  A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD WITH AN ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN THE NORTH A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD WITH AN ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN THE NORTH  FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD WITH AN ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN THE NORTH FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD WITH AN ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN THE NORTH  5/8” IRON ROD WITH AN ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN THE NORTH 5/8” IRON ROD WITH AN ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN THE NORTH  IRON ROD WITH AN ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN THE NORTH IRON ROD WITH AN ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN THE NORTH  ROD WITH AN ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN THE NORTH ROD WITH AN ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN THE NORTH  WITH AN ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN THE NORTH WITH AN ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN THE NORTH  AN ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN THE NORTH AN ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN THE NORTH  ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN THE NORTH ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN THE NORTH  PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN THE NORTH PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN THE NORTH  CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN THE NORTH CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN THE NORTH  STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN THE NORTH STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN THE NORTH  “WINDROSE” IN THE NORTH WINDROSE” IN THE NORTH  IN THE NORTH IN THE NORTH  THE NORTH THE NORTH  NORTH NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.M. 529, A 120' WIDE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY, FOR THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 48A OF SAID  LINE OF F.M. 529, A 120' WIDE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY, FOR THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 48A OF SAID LINE OF F.M. 529, A 120' WIDE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY, FOR THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 48A OF SAID  OF F.M. 529, A 120' WIDE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY, FOR THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 48A OF SAID OF F.M. 529, A 120' WIDE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY, FOR THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 48A OF SAID  F.M. 529, A 120' WIDE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY, FOR THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 48A OF SAID F.M. 529, A 120' WIDE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY, FOR THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 48A OF SAID  529, A 120' WIDE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY, FOR THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 48A OF SAID 529, A 120' WIDE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY, FOR THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 48A OF SAID  A 120' WIDE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY, FOR THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 48A OF SAID A 120' WIDE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY, FOR THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 48A OF SAID  120' WIDE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY, FOR THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 48A OF SAID 120' WIDE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY, FOR THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 48A OF SAID  WIDE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY, FOR THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 48A OF SAID WIDE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY, FOR THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 48A OF SAID  PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY, FOR THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 48A OF SAID PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY, FOR THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 48A OF SAID  RIGHT-OF-WAY, FOR THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 48A OF SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY, FOR THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 48A OF SAID  FOR THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 48A OF SAID FOR THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 48A OF SAID  THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 48A OF SAID THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 48A OF SAID  SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 48A OF SAID SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 48A OF SAID  CORNER OF LOT 48A OF SAID CORNER OF LOT 48A OF SAID  OF LOT 48A OF SAID OF LOT 48A OF SAID  LOT 48A OF SAID LOT 48A OF SAID  48A OF SAID 48A OF SAID  OF SAID OF SAID  SAID SAID HOT SHOT ADDITION, THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT, SAID LOT 48B AND THE TRACT DESCRIBED  SHOT ADDITION, THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT, SAID LOT 48B AND THE TRACT DESCRIBED SHOT ADDITION, THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT, SAID LOT 48B AND THE TRACT DESCRIBED  ADDITION, THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT, SAID LOT 48B AND THE TRACT DESCRIBED ADDITION, THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT, SAID LOT 48B AND THE TRACT DESCRIBED  THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT, SAID LOT 48B AND THE TRACT DESCRIBED THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT, SAID LOT 48B AND THE TRACT DESCRIBED  SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT, SAID LOT 48B AND THE TRACT DESCRIBED SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT, SAID LOT 48B AND THE TRACT DESCRIBED  CORNER OF SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT, SAID LOT 48B AND THE TRACT DESCRIBED CORNER OF SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT, SAID LOT 48B AND THE TRACT DESCRIBED  OF SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT, SAID LOT 48B AND THE TRACT DESCRIBED OF SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT, SAID LOT 48B AND THE TRACT DESCRIBED  SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT, SAID LOT 48B AND THE TRACT DESCRIBED SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT, SAID LOT 48B AND THE TRACT DESCRIBED  4.0026 ACRE TRACT, SAID LOT 48B AND THE TRACT DESCRIBED 4.0026 ACRE TRACT, SAID LOT 48B AND THE TRACT DESCRIBED  ACRE TRACT, SAID LOT 48B AND THE TRACT DESCRIBED ACRE TRACT, SAID LOT 48B AND THE TRACT DESCRIBED  TRACT, SAID LOT 48B AND THE TRACT DESCRIBED TRACT, SAID LOT 48B AND THE TRACT DESCRIBED  SAID LOT 48B AND THE TRACT DESCRIBED SAID LOT 48B AND THE TRACT DESCRIBED  LOT 48B AND THE TRACT DESCRIBED LOT 48B AND THE TRACT DESCRIBED  48B AND THE TRACT DESCRIBED 48B AND THE TRACT DESCRIBED  AND THE TRACT DESCRIBED AND THE TRACT DESCRIBED  THE TRACT DESCRIBED THE TRACT DESCRIBED  TRACT DESCRIBED TRACT DESCRIBED  DESCRIBED DESCRIBED HEREIN, FROM WHICH A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD WITH A ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY  FROM WHICH A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD WITH A ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY FROM WHICH A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD WITH A ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY  WHICH A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD WITH A ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY WHICH A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD WITH A ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY  A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD WITH A ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD WITH A ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY  FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD WITH A ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD WITH A ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY  5/8” IRON ROD WITH A ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY 5/8” IRON ROD WITH A ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY  IRON ROD WITH A ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY IRON ROD WITH A ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY  ROD WITH A ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY ROD WITH A ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY  WITH A ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY WITH A ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY  A ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY A ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY  ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY  PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY  CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY  STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY  “WINDROSE” IN SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY WINDROSE” IN SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY  IN SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY IN SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY  SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY  RIGHT-OF-WAY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND FOR THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 48A BEARS, S 87° 09' 23” W, A DISTANCE OF 185.12 FEET;  W, A DISTANCE OF 185.12 FEET; THENCE: N 02° 32' 08” W, DEPARTING SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND THE COMMON LINE BETWEEN SAID LOTS 48A N 02° 32' 08” W, DEPARTING SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND THE COMMON LINE BETWEEN SAID LOTS 48A  02° 32' 08” W, DEPARTING SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND THE COMMON LINE BETWEEN SAID LOTS 48A 02° 32' 08” W, DEPARTING SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND THE COMMON LINE BETWEEN SAID LOTS 48A  32' 08” W, DEPARTING SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND THE COMMON LINE BETWEEN SAID LOTS 48A 32' 08” W, DEPARTING SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND THE COMMON LINE BETWEEN SAID LOTS 48A  08” W, DEPARTING SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND THE COMMON LINE BETWEEN SAID LOTS 48A 08” W, DEPARTING SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND THE COMMON LINE BETWEEN SAID LOTS 48A  W, DEPARTING SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND THE COMMON LINE BETWEEN SAID LOTS 48A W, DEPARTING SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND THE COMMON LINE BETWEEN SAID LOTS 48A  DEPARTING SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND THE COMMON LINE BETWEEN SAID LOTS 48A DEPARTING SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND THE COMMON LINE BETWEEN SAID LOTS 48A  SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND THE COMMON LINE BETWEEN SAID LOTS 48A SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND THE COMMON LINE BETWEEN SAID LOTS 48A  RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND THE COMMON LINE BETWEEN SAID LOTS 48A RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND THE COMMON LINE BETWEEN SAID LOTS 48A  LINE AND THE COMMON LINE BETWEEN SAID LOTS 48A LINE AND THE COMMON LINE BETWEEN SAID LOTS 48A  AND THE COMMON LINE BETWEEN SAID LOTS 48A AND THE COMMON LINE BETWEEN SAID LOTS 48A  THE COMMON LINE BETWEEN SAID LOTS 48A THE COMMON LINE BETWEEN SAID LOTS 48A  COMMON LINE BETWEEN SAID LOTS 48A COMMON LINE BETWEEN SAID LOTS 48A  LINE BETWEEN SAID LOTS 48A LINE BETWEEN SAID LOTS 48A  BETWEEN SAID LOTS 48A BETWEEN SAID LOTS 48A  SAID LOTS 48A SAID LOTS 48A  LOTS 48A LOTS 48A  48A 48A AND 48B, AND THE WEST LINE OF SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT, A DISTANCE OF 648.00 FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD  48B, AND THE WEST LINE OF SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT, A DISTANCE OF 648.00 FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD 48B, AND THE WEST LINE OF SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT, A DISTANCE OF 648.00 FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD  AND THE WEST LINE OF SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT, A DISTANCE OF 648.00 FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD AND THE WEST LINE OF SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT, A DISTANCE OF 648.00 FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD  THE WEST LINE OF SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT, A DISTANCE OF 648.00 FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD THE WEST LINE OF SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT, A DISTANCE OF 648.00 FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD  WEST LINE OF SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT, A DISTANCE OF 648.00 FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD WEST LINE OF SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT, A DISTANCE OF 648.00 FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD  LINE OF SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT, A DISTANCE OF 648.00 FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD LINE OF SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT, A DISTANCE OF 648.00 FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD  OF SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT, A DISTANCE OF 648.00 FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD OF SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT, A DISTANCE OF 648.00 FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD  SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT, A DISTANCE OF 648.00 FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT, A DISTANCE OF 648.00 FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD  4.0026 ACRE TRACT, A DISTANCE OF 648.00 FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD 4.0026 ACRE TRACT, A DISTANCE OF 648.00 FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD  ACRE TRACT, A DISTANCE OF 648.00 FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD ACRE TRACT, A DISTANCE OF 648.00 FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD  TRACT, A DISTANCE OF 648.00 FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD TRACT, A DISTANCE OF 648.00 FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD  A DISTANCE OF 648.00 FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD A DISTANCE OF 648.00 FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD  DISTANCE OF 648.00 FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD DISTANCE OF 648.00 FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD  OF 648.00 FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD OF 648.00 FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD  648.00 FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD 648.00 FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD  FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD  TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD  A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD  FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD  5/8” IRON ROD 5/8” IRON ROD  IRON ROD IRON ROD  ROD ROD WITH A ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN THE SOUTH LINE OF A CALLED 7.922 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS  A ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN THE SOUTH LINE OF A CALLED 7.922 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS A ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN THE SOUTH LINE OF A CALLED 7.922 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS  ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN THE SOUTH LINE OF A CALLED 7.922 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN THE SOUTH LINE OF A CALLED 7.922 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS  PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN THE SOUTH LINE OF A CALLED 7.922 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN THE SOUTH LINE OF A CALLED 7.922 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS  CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN THE SOUTH LINE OF A CALLED 7.922 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN THE SOUTH LINE OF A CALLED 7.922 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS  STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN THE SOUTH LINE OF A CALLED 7.922 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS STAMPED “WINDROSE” IN THE SOUTH LINE OF A CALLED 7.922 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS  “WINDROSE” IN THE SOUTH LINE OF A CALLED 7.922 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS WINDROSE” IN THE SOUTH LINE OF A CALLED 7.922 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS  IN THE SOUTH LINE OF A CALLED 7.922 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS IN THE SOUTH LINE OF A CALLED 7.922 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS  THE SOUTH LINE OF A CALLED 7.922 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS THE SOUTH LINE OF A CALLED 7.922 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS  SOUTH LINE OF A CALLED 7.922 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS SOUTH LINE OF A CALLED 7.922 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS  LINE OF A CALLED 7.922 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS LINE OF A CALLED 7.922 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS  OF A CALLED 7.922 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS OF A CALLED 7.922 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS  A CALLED 7.922 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS A CALLED 7.922 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS  CALLED 7.922 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS CALLED 7.922 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS  7.922 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS 7.922 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS  ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS  TRACT OF LAND AS TRACT OF LAND AS  OF LAND AS OF LAND AS  LAND AS LAND AS  AS AS DESCRIBED OF RECORD IN DOCUMENT NO. H008704 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, FOR THE  OF RECORD IN DOCUMENT NO. H008704 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, FOR THE OF RECORD IN DOCUMENT NO. H008704 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, FOR THE  RECORD IN DOCUMENT NO. H008704 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, FOR THE RECORD IN DOCUMENT NO. H008704 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, FOR THE  IN DOCUMENT NO. H008704 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, FOR THE IN DOCUMENT NO. H008704 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, FOR THE  DOCUMENT NO. H008704 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, FOR THE DOCUMENT NO. H008704 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, FOR THE  NO. H008704 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, FOR THE NO. H008704 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, FOR THE  H008704 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, FOR THE H008704 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, FOR THE  OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, FOR THE OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, FOR THE  THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, FOR THE THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, FOR THE  REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, FOR THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, FOR THE  PROPERTY RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, FOR THE PROPERTY RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, FOR THE  RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, FOR THE RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, FOR THE  OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, FOR THE OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, FOR THE  HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, FOR THE HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, FOR THE  COUNTY, TEXAS, FOR THE COUNTY, TEXAS, FOR THE  TEXAS, FOR THE TEXAS, FOR THE  FOR THE FOR THE  THE THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 48A, THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 48B, SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT AND THE  CORNER OF SAID LOT 48A, THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 48B, SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT AND THE CORNER OF SAID LOT 48A, THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 48B, SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT AND THE  OF SAID LOT 48A, THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 48B, SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT AND THE OF SAID LOT 48A, THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 48B, SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT AND THE  SAID LOT 48A, THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 48B, SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT AND THE SAID LOT 48A, THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 48B, SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT AND THE  LOT 48A, THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 48B, SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT AND THE LOT 48A, THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 48B, SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT AND THE  48A, THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 48B, SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT AND THE 48A, THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 48B, SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT AND THE  THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 48B, SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT AND THE THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 48B, SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT AND THE  NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 48B, SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT AND THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 48B, SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT AND THE  CORNER OF SAID LOT 48B, SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT AND THE CORNER OF SAID LOT 48B, SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT AND THE  OF SAID LOT 48B, SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT AND THE OF SAID LOT 48B, SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT AND THE  SAID LOT 48B, SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT AND THE SAID LOT 48B, SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT AND THE  LOT 48B, SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT AND THE LOT 48B, SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT AND THE  48B, SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT AND THE 48B, SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT AND THE  SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT AND THE SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT AND THE  4.0026 ACRE TRACT AND THE 4.0026 ACRE TRACT AND THE  ACRE TRACT AND THE ACRE TRACT AND THE  TRACT AND THE TRACT AND THE  AND THE AND THE  THE THE TRACT DESCRIBED HEREIN, FROM WHICH A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD WITH A ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” FOR  DESCRIBED HEREIN, FROM WHICH A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD WITH A ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” FOR DESCRIBED HEREIN, FROM WHICH A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD WITH A ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” FOR  HEREIN, FROM WHICH A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD WITH A ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” FOR HEREIN, FROM WHICH A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD WITH A ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” FOR  FROM WHICH A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD WITH A ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” FOR FROM WHICH A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD WITH A ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” FOR  WHICH A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD WITH A ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” FOR WHICH A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD WITH A ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” FOR  A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD WITH A ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” FOR A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD WITH A ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” FOR  FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD WITH A ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” FOR FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD WITH A ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” FOR  5/8” IRON ROD WITH A ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” FOR 5/8” IRON ROD WITH A ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” FOR  IRON ROD WITH A ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” FOR IRON ROD WITH A ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” FOR  ROD WITH A ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” FOR ROD WITH A ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” FOR  WITH A ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” FOR WITH A ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” FOR  A ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” FOR A ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” FOR  ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” FOR ORANGE PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” FOR  PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” FOR PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” FOR  CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” FOR CAP STAMPED “WINDROSE” FOR  STAMPED “WINDROSE” FOR STAMPED “WINDROSE” FOR  “WINDROSE” FOR WINDROSE” FOR  FOR FOR THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 48A BEARS, S 87° 04' 07” W, A DISTANCE OF 185.34 FEET;  W, A DISTANCE OF 185.34 FEET; THENCE: N 87° 04' 07” E, WITH THE NORTH LINES OF LOT 48B, SAID LOT 49, SAID 4.0026 ACRE N 87° 04' 07” E, WITH THE NORTH LINES OF LOT 48B, SAID LOT 49, SAID 4.0026 ACRE  87° 04' 07” E, WITH THE NORTH LINES OF LOT 48B, SAID LOT 49, SAID 4.0026 ACRE 87° 04' 07” E, WITH THE NORTH LINES OF LOT 48B, SAID LOT 49, SAID 4.0026 ACRE  04' 07” E, WITH THE NORTH LINES OF LOT 48B, SAID LOT 49, SAID 4.0026 ACRE 04' 07” E, WITH THE NORTH LINES OF LOT 48B, SAID LOT 49, SAID 4.0026 ACRE  07” E, WITH THE NORTH LINES OF LOT 48B, SAID LOT 49, SAID 4.0026 ACRE 07” E, WITH THE NORTH LINES OF LOT 48B, SAID LOT 49, SAID 4.0026 ACRE  E, WITH THE NORTH LINES OF LOT 48B, SAID LOT 49, SAID 4.0026 ACRE E, WITH THE NORTH LINES OF LOT 48B, SAID LOT 49, SAID 4.0026 ACRE  WITH THE NORTH LINES OF LOT 48B, SAID LOT 49, SAID 4.0026 ACRE WITH THE NORTH LINES OF LOT 48B, SAID LOT 49, SAID 4.0026 ACRE  THE NORTH LINES OF LOT 48B, SAID LOT 49, SAID 4.0026 ACRE THE NORTH LINES OF LOT 48B, SAID LOT 49, SAID 4.0026 ACRE  NORTH LINES OF LOT 48B, SAID LOT 49, SAID 4.0026 ACRE NORTH LINES OF LOT 48B, SAID LOT 49, SAID 4.0026 ACRE  LINES OF LOT 48B, SAID LOT 49, SAID 4.0026 ACRE LINES OF LOT 48B, SAID LOT 49, SAID 4.0026 ACRE  OF LOT 48B, SAID LOT 49, SAID 4.0026 ACRE OF LOT 48B, SAID LOT 49, SAID 4.0026 ACRE  LOT 48B, SAID LOT 49, SAID 4.0026 ACRE LOT 48B, SAID LOT 49, SAID 4.0026 ACRE  48B, SAID LOT 49, SAID 4.0026 ACRE 48B, SAID LOT 49, SAID 4.0026 ACRE  SAID LOT 49, SAID 4.0026 ACRE SAID LOT 49, SAID 4.0026 ACRE  LOT 49, SAID 4.0026 ACRE LOT 49, SAID 4.0026 ACRE  49, SAID 4.0026 ACRE 49, SAID 4.0026 ACRE  SAID 4.0026 ACRE SAID 4.0026 ACRE  4.0026 ACRE 4.0026 ACRE  ACRE ACRE TRACT, SAID 2.1282 ACRE TRACT AND THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 7.922 ACRE TRACT, ALSO BEING THE SOUTH LINES OF LOTS  SAID 2.1282 ACRE TRACT AND THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 7.922 ACRE TRACT, ALSO BEING THE SOUTH LINES OF LOTS SAID 2.1282 ACRE TRACT AND THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 7.922 ACRE TRACT, ALSO BEING THE SOUTH LINES OF LOTS  2.1282 ACRE TRACT AND THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 7.922 ACRE TRACT, ALSO BEING THE SOUTH LINES OF LOTS 2.1282 ACRE TRACT AND THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 7.922 ACRE TRACT, ALSO BEING THE SOUTH LINES OF LOTS  ACRE TRACT AND THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 7.922 ACRE TRACT, ALSO BEING THE SOUTH LINES OF LOTS ACRE TRACT AND THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 7.922 ACRE TRACT, ALSO BEING THE SOUTH LINES OF LOTS  TRACT AND THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 7.922 ACRE TRACT, ALSO BEING THE SOUTH LINES OF LOTS TRACT AND THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 7.922 ACRE TRACT, ALSO BEING THE SOUTH LINES OF LOTS  AND THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 7.922 ACRE TRACT, ALSO BEING THE SOUTH LINES OF LOTS AND THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 7.922 ACRE TRACT, ALSO BEING THE SOUTH LINES OF LOTS  THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 7.922 ACRE TRACT, ALSO BEING THE SOUTH LINES OF LOTS THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 7.922 ACRE TRACT, ALSO BEING THE SOUTH LINES OF LOTS  SOUTH LINE OF SAID 7.922 ACRE TRACT, ALSO BEING THE SOUTH LINES OF LOTS SOUTH LINE OF SAID 7.922 ACRE TRACT, ALSO BEING THE SOUTH LINES OF LOTS  LINE OF SAID 7.922 ACRE TRACT, ALSO BEING THE SOUTH LINES OF LOTS LINE OF SAID 7.922 ACRE TRACT, ALSO BEING THE SOUTH LINES OF LOTS  OF SAID 7.922 ACRE TRACT, ALSO BEING THE SOUTH LINES OF LOTS OF SAID 7.922 ACRE TRACT, ALSO BEING THE SOUTH LINES OF LOTS  SAID 7.922 ACRE TRACT, ALSO BEING THE SOUTH LINES OF LOTS SAID 7.922 ACRE TRACT, ALSO BEING THE SOUTH LINES OF LOTS  7.922 ACRE TRACT, ALSO BEING THE SOUTH LINES OF LOTS 7.922 ACRE TRACT, ALSO BEING THE SOUTH LINES OF LOTS  ACRE TRACT, ALSO BEING THE SOUTH LINES OF LOTS ACRE TRACT, ALSO BEING THE SOUTH LINES OF LOTS  TRACT, ALSO BEING THE SOUTH LINES OF LOTS TRACT, ALSO BEING THE SOUTH LINES OF LOTS  ALSO BEING THE SOUTH LINES OF LOTS ALSO BEING THE SOUTH LINES OF LOTS  BEING THE SOUTH LINES OF LOTS BEING THE SOUTH LINES OF LOTS  THE SOUTH LINES OF LOTS THE SOUTH LINES OF LOTS  SOUTH LINES OF LOTS SOUTH LINES OF LOTS  LINES OF LOTS LINES OF LOTS  OF LOTS OF LOTS  LOTS LOTS 43 AND 42 OF SAID FAIRVIEW GARDENS SUBDIVISION, AND THE SOUTH LINE OF A CALLED 1.98779 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS  AND 42 OF SAID FAIRVIEW GARDENS SUBDIVISION, AND THE SOUTH LINE OF A CALLED 1.98779 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS AND 42 OF SAID FAIRVIEW GARDENS SUBDIVISION, AND THE SOUTH LINE OF A CALLED 1.98779 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS  42 OF SAID FAIRVIEW GARDENS SUBDIVISION, AND THE SOUTH LINE OF A CALLED 1.98779 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS 42 OF SAID FAIRVIEW GARDENS SUBDIVISION, AND THE SOUTH LINE OF A CALLED 1.98779 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS  OF SAID FAIRVIEW GARDENS SUBDIVISION, AND THE SOUTH LINE OF A CALLED 1.98779 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS OF SAID FAIRVIEW GARDENS SUBDIVISION, AND THE SOUTH LINE OF A CALLED 1.98779 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS  SAID FAIRVIEW GARDENS SUBDIVISION, AND THE SOUTH LINE OF A CALLED 1.98779 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS SAID FAIRVIEW GARDENS SUBDIVISION, AND THE SOUTH LINE OF A CALLED 1.98779 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS  FAIRVIEW GARDENS SUBDIVISION, AND THE SOUTH LINE OF A CALLED 1.98779 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS FAIRVIEW GARDENS SUBDIVISION, AND THE SOUTH LINE OF A CALLED 1.98779 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS  GARDENS SUBDIVISION, AND THE SOUTH LINE OF A CALLED 1.98779 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS GARDENS SUBDIVISION, AND THE SOUTH LINE OF A CALLED 1.98779 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS  SUBDIVISION, AND THE SOUTH LINE OF A CALLED 1.98779 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS SUBDIVISION, AND THE SOUTH LINE OF A CALLED 1.98779 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS  AND THE SOUTH LINE OF A CALLED 1.98779 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS AND THE SOUTH LINE OF A CALLED 1.98779 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS  THE SOUTH LINE OF A CALLED 1.98779 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS THE SOUTH LINE OF A CALLED 1.98779 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS  SOUTH LINE OF A CALLED 1.98779 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS SOUTH LINE OF A CALLED 1.98779 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS  LINE OF A CALLED 1.98779 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS LINE OF A CALLED 1.98779 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS  OF A CALLED 1.98779 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS OF A CALLED 1.98779 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS  A CALLED 1.98779 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS A CALLED 1.98779 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS  CALLED 1.98779 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS CALLED 1.98779 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS  1.98779 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS 1.98779 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS  ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS  TRACT OF LAND AS TRACT OF LAND AS  OF LAND AS OF LAND AS  LAND AS LAND AS  AS AS DESCRIBED OF RECORD IN FILM CODE NO. 521-74-0872 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, A  OF RECORD IN FILM CODE NO. 521-74-0872 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, A OF RECORD IN FILM CODE NO. 521-74-0872 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, A  RECORD IN FILM CODE NO. 521-74-0872 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, A RECORD IN FILM CODE NO. 521-74-0872 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, A  IN FILM CODE NO. 521-74-0872 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, A IN FILM CODE NO. 521-74-0872 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, A  FILM CODE NO. 521-74-0872 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, A FILM CODE NO. 521-74-0872 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, A  CODE NO. 521-74-0872 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, A CODE NO. 521-74-0872 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, A  NO. 521-74-0872 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, A NO. 521-74-0872 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, A  521-74-0872 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, A 521-74-0872 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, A  OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, A OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, A  THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, A THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, A  REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, A REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, A  PROPERTY RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, A PROPERTY RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, A  RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, A RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, A  OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, A OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, A  HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, A HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, A  COUNTY, TEXAS, A COUNTY, TEXAS, A  TEXAS, A TEXAS, A  A A DISTANCE OF 364.89 FEET TO A FOUND ½” IRON ROD WITH A YELLOW PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “4966” IN THE WEST  OF 364.89 FEET TO A FOUND ½” IRON ROD WITH A YELLOW PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “4966” IN THE WEST OF 364.89 FEET TO A FOUND ½” IRON ROD WITH A YELLOW PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “4966” IN THE WEST  364.89 FEET TO A FOUND ½” IRON ROD WITH A YELLOW PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “4966” IN THE WEST 364.89 FEET TO A FOUND ½” IRON ROD WITH A YELLOW PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “4966” IN THE WEST  FEET TO A FOUND ½” IRON ROD WITH A YELLOW PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “4966” IN THE WEST FEET TO A FOUND ½” IRON ROD WITH A YELLOW PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “4966” IN THE WEST  TO A FOUND ½” IRON ROD WITH A YELLOW PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “4966” IN THE WEST TO A FOUND ½” IRON ROD WITH A YELLOW PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “4966” IN THE WEST  A FOUND ½” IRON ROD WITH A YELLOW PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “4966” IN THE WEST A FOUND ½” IRON ROD WITH A YELLOW PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “4966” IN THE WEST  FOUND ½” IRON ROD WITH A YELLOW PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “4966” IN THE WEST FOUND ½” IRON ROD WITH A YELLOW PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “4966” IN THE WEST  ½” IRON ROD WITH A YELLOW PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “4966” IN THE WEST ½” IRON ROD WITH A YELLOW PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “4966” IN THE WEST  IRON ROD WITH A YELLOW PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “4966” IN THE WEST IRON ROD WITH A YELLOW PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “4966” IN THE WEST  ROD WITH A YELLOW PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “4966” IN THE WEST ROD WITH A YELLOW PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “4966” IN THE WEST  WITH A YELLOW PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “4966” IN THE WEST WITH A YELLOW PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “4966” IN THE WEST  A YELLOW PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “4966” IN THE WEST A YELLOW PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “4966” IN THE WEST  YELLOW PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “4966” IN THE WEST YELLOW PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “4966” IN THE WEST  PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “4966” IN THE WEST PLASTIC CAP STAMPED “4966” IN THE WEST  CAP STAMPED “4966” IN THE WEST CAP STAMPED “4966” IN THE WEST  STAMPED “4966” IN THE WEST STAMPED “4966” IN THE WEST  “4966” IN THE WEST 4966” IN THE WEST  IN THE WEST IN THE WEST  THE WEST THE WEST  WEST WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF JONES RD., FOR THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF A CALLED 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT TO THE  LINE OF JONES RD., FOR THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF A CALLED 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT TO THE LINE OF JONES RD., FOR THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF A CALLED 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT TO THE  OF JONES RD., FOR THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF A CALLED 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT TO THE OF JONES RD., FOR THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF A CALLED 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT TO THE  JONES RD., FOR THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF A CALLED 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT TO THE JONES RD., FOR THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF A CALLED 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT TO THE  RD., FOR THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF A CALLED 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT TO THE RD., FOR THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF A CALLED 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT TO THE  FOR THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF A CALLED 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT TO THE FOR THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF A CALLED 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT TO THE  THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF A CALLED 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT TO THE THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF A CALLED 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT TO THE  NORTHWEST CORNER OF A CALLED 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF A CALLED 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT TO THE  CORNER OF A CALLED 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT TO THE CORNER OF A CALLED 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT TO THE  OF A CALLED 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT TO THE OF A CALLED 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT TO THE  A CALLED 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT TO THE A CALLED 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT TO THE  CALLED 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT TO THE CALLED 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT TO THE  0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT TO THE 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT TO THE  ACRE ROAD EASEMENT TO THE ACRE ROAD EASEMENT TO THE  ROAD EASEMENT TO THE ROAD EASEMENT TO THE  EASEMENT TO THE EASEMENT TO THE  TO THE TO THE  THE THE COUNTY OF HARRIS AS DESCRIBED OF RECORD IN DOCUMENT NO. 20070245178 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF  OF HARRIS AS DESCRIBED OF RECORD IN DOCUMENT NO. 20070245178 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF OF HARRIS AS DESCRIBED OF RECORD IN DOCUMENT NO. 20070245178 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF  HARRIS AS DESCRIBED OF RECORD IN DOCUMENT NO. 20070245178 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF HARRIS AS DESCRIBED OF RECORD IN DOCUMENT NO. 20070245178 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF  AS DESCRIBED OF RECORD IN DOCUMENT NO. 20070245178 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF AS DESCRIBED OF RECORD IN DOCUMENT NO. 20070245178 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF  DESCRIBED OF RECORD IN DOCUMENT NO. 20070245178 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF DESCRIBED OF RECORD IN DOCUMENT NO. 20070245178 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF  OF RECORD IN DOCUMENT NO. 20070245178 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF OF RECORD IN DOCUMENT NO. 20070245178 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF  RECORD IN DOCUMENT NO. 20070245178 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF RECORD IN DOCUMENT NO. 20070245178 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF  IN DOCUMENT NO. 20070245178 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF IN DOCUMENT NO. 20070245178 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF  DOCUMENT NO. 20070245178 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF DOCUMENT NO. 20070245178 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF  NO. 20070245178 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF NO. 20070245178 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF  20070245178 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF 20070245178 OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF  OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF  THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF  REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF  PROPERTY RECORDS OF PROPERTY RECORDS OF  RECORDS OF RECORDS OF  OF OF HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS, FOR THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE TRACT AND THE TRACT DESCRIBED HEREIN; THENCE: WITH THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF JONES RD., THE WEST LINE OF SAID 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT AND WITH THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF JONES RD., THE WEST LINE OF SAID 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT AND  THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF JONES RD., THE WEST LINE OF SAID 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT AND THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF JONES RD., THE WEST LINE OF SAID 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT AND  WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF JONES RD., THE WEST LINE OF SAID 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT AND WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF JONES RD., THE WEST LINE OF SAID 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT AND  RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF JONES RD., THE WEST LINE OF SAID 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT AND RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF JONES RD., THE WEST LINE OF SAID 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT AND  LINE OF JONES RD., THE WEST LINE OF SAID 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT AND LINE OF JONES RD., THE WEST LINE OF SAID 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT AND  OF JONES RD., THE WEST LINE OF SAID 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT AND OF JONES RD., THE WEST LINE OF SAID 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT AND  JONES RD., THE WEST LINE OF SAID 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT AND JONES RD., THE WEST LINE OF SAID 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT AND  RD., THE WEST LINE OF SAID 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT AND RD., THE WEST LINE OF SAID 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT AND  THE WEST LINE OF SAID 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT AND THE WEST LINE OF SAID 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT AND  WEST LINE OF SAID 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT AND WEST LINE OF SAID 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT AND  LINE OF SAID 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT AND LINE OF SAID 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT AND  OF SAID 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT AND OF SAID 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT AND  SAID 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT AND SAID 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT AND  0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT AND 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT AND  ACRE ROAD EASEMENT AND ACRE ROAD EASEMENT AND  ROAD EASEMENT AND ROAD EASEMENT AND  EASEMENT AND EASEMENT AND  AND AND THE EAST LINE OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE TRACT, THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES: 1. S 13° 50' 41” E, A DISTANCE OF 161.90 FEET TO A SET 5/8” IRON ROD FOR A POINT OF CURVATURE, S 13° 50' 41” E, A DISTANCE OF 161.90 FEET TO A SET 5/8” IRON ROD FOR A POINT OF CURVATURE,  E, A DISTANCE OF 161.90 FEET TO A SET 5/8” IRON ROD FOR A POINT OF CURVATURE,  IRON ROD FOR A POINT OF CURVATURE, 2. WITH A TANGENT CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 1950.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 396.45 FEET, A DELTA WITH A TANGENT CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 1950.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 396.45 FEET, A DELTA  A TANGENT CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 1950.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 396.45 FEET, A DELTA A TANGENT CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 1950.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 396.45 FEET, A DELTA  TANGENT CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 1950.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 396.45 FEET, A DELTA TANGENT CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 1950.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 396.45 FEET, A DELTA  CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 1950.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 396.45 FEET, A DELTA CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 1950.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 396.45 FEET, A DELTA  TO THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 1950.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 396.45 FEET, A DELTA TO THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 1950.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 396.45 FEET, A DELTA  THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 1950.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 396.45 FEET, A DELTA THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 1950.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 396.45 FEET, A DELTA  RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 1950.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 396.45 FEET, A DELTA RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 1950.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 396.45 FEET, A DELTA  HAVING A RADIUS OF 1950.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 396.45 FEET, A DELTA HAVING A RADIUS OF 1950.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 396.45 FEET, A DELTA  A RADIUS OF 1950.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 396.45 FEET, A DELTA A RADIUS OF 1950.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 396.45 FEET, A DELTA  RADIUS OF 1950.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 396.45 FEET, A DELTA RADIUS OF 1950.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 396.45 FEET, A DELTA  OF 1950.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 396.45 FEET, A DELTA OF 1950.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 396.45 FEET, A DELTA  1950.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 396.45 FEET, A DELTA 1950.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 396.45 FEET, A DELTA  FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 396.45 FEET, A DELTA FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 396.45 FEET, A DELTA  AN ARC LENGTH OF 396.45 FEET, A DELTA AN ARC LENGTH OF 396.45 FEET, A DELTA  ARC LENGTH OF 396.45 FEET, A DELTA ARC LENGTH OF 396.45 FEET, A DELTA  LENGTH OF 396.45 FEET, A DELTA LENGTH OF 396.45 FEET, A DELTA  OF 396.45 FEET, A DELTA OF 396.45 FEET, A DELTA  396.45 FEET, A DELTA 396.45 FEET, A DELTA  FEET, A DELTA FEET, A DELTA  A DELTA A DELTA  DELTA DELTA ANGLE OF 011° 38' 55” AND A CHORD BEARS, S 08° 01' 13” E, A DISTANCE OF 395.77 FEET TO A SET 5/8” IRON  OF 011° 38' 55” AND A CHORD BEARS, S 08° 01' 13” E, A DISTANCE OF 395.77 FEET TO A SET 5/8” IRON OF 011° 38' 55” AND A CHORD BEARS, S 08° 01' 13” E, A DISTANCE OF 395.77 FEET TO A SET 5/8” IRON  011° 38' 55” AND A CHORD BEARS, S 08° 01' 13” E, A DISTANCE OF 395.77 FEET TO A SET 5/8” IRON 011° 38' 55” AND A CHORD BEARS, S 08° 01' 13” E, A DISTANCE OF 395.77 FEET TO A SET 5/8” IRON  38' 55” AND A CHORD BEARS, S 08° 01' 13” E, A DISTANCE OF 395.77 FEET TO A SET 5/8” IRON 38' 55” AND A CHORD BEARS, S 08° 01' 13” E, A DISTANCE OF 395.77 FEET TO A SET 5/8” IRON  55” AND A CHORD BEARS, S 08° 01' 13” E, A DISTANCE OF 395.77 FEET TO A SET 5/8” IRON 55” AND A CHORD BEARS, S 08° 01' 13” E, A DISTANCE OF 395.77 FEET TO A SET 5/8” IRON  AND A CHORD BEARS, S 08° 01' 13” E, A DISTANCE OF 395.77 FEET TO A SET 5/8” IRON AND A CHORD BEARS, S 08° 01' 13” E, A DISTANCE OF 395.77 FEET TO A SET 5/8” IRON  A CHORD BEARS, S 08° 01' 13” E, A DISTANCE OF 395.77 FEET TO A SET 5/8” IRON A CHORD BEARS, S 08° 01' 13” E, A DISTANCE OF 395.77 FEET TO A SET 5/8” IRON  CHORD BEARS, S 08° 01' 13” E, A DISTANCE OF 395.77 FEET TO A SET 5/8” IRON CHORD BEARS, S 08° 01' 13” E, A DISTANCE OF 395.77 FEET TO A SET 5/8” IRON  BEARS, S 08° 01' 13” E, A DISTANCE OF 395.77 FEET TO A SET 5/8” IRON BEARS, S 08° 01' 13” E, A DISTANCE OF 395.77 FEET TO A SET 5/8” IRON  S 08° 01' 13” E, A DISTANCE OF 395.77 FEET TO A SET 5/8” IRON S 08° 01' 13” E, A DISTANCE OF 395.77 FEET TO A SET 5/8” IRON  08° 01' 13” E, A DISTANCE OF 395.77 FEET TO A SET 5/8” IRON 08° 01' 13” E, A DISTANCE OF 395.77 FEET TO A SET 5/8” IRON  01' 13” E, A DISTANCE OF 395.77 FEET TO A SET 5/8” IRON 01' 13” E, A DISTANCE OF 395.77 FEET TO A SET 5/8” IRON  13” E, A DISTANCE OF 395.77 FEET TO A SET 5/8” IRON 13” E, A DISTANCE OF 395.77 FEET TO A SET 5/8” IRON  E, A DISTANCE OF 395.77 FEET TO A SET 5/8” IRON E, A DISTANCE OF 395.77 FEET TO A SET 5/8” IRON  A DISTANCE OF 395.77 FEET TO A SET 5/8” IRON A DISTANCE OF 395.77 FEET TO A SET 5/8” IRON  DISTANCE OF 395.77 FEET TO A SET 5/8” IRON DISTANCE OF 395.77 FEET TO A SET 5/8” IRON  OF 395.77 FEET TO A SET 5/8” IRON OF 395.77 FEET TO A SET 5/8” IRON  395.77 FEET TO A SET 5/8” IRON 395.77 FEET TO A SET 5/8” IRON  FEET TO A SET 5/8” IRON FEET TO A SET 5/8” IRON  TO A SET 5/8” IRON TO A SET 5/8” IRON  A SET 5/8” IRON A SET 5/8” IRON  SET 5/8” IRON SET 5/8” IRON  5/8” IRON 5/8” IRON  IRON IRON ROD FOR POINT OF TANGENCY, 3. S 02° 11' 45” E, A DISTANCE OF 66.67 FEET TO A SET 5/8” IRON ROD FOR CORNER, AND S 02° 11' 45” E, A DISTANCE OF 66.67 FEET TO A SET 5/8” IRON ROD FOR CORNER, AND  E, A DISTANCE OF 66.67 FEET TO A SET 5/8” IRON ROD FOR CORNER, AND  IRON ROD FOR CORNER, AND 4. S 42° 40' 16” W, A DISTANCE OF 41.12 FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD AT THE SOUTH END OF A CUTBACK AT THE S 42° 40' 16” W, A DISTANCE OF 41.12 FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD AT THE SOUTH END OF A CUTBACK AT THE  42° 40' 16” W, A DISTANCE OF 41.12 FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD AT THE SOUTH END OF A CUTBACK AT THE 42° 40' 16” W, A DISTANCE OF 41.12 FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD AT THE SOUTH END OF A CUTBACK AT THE  40' 16” W, A DISTANCE OF 41.12 FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD AT THE SOUTH END OF A CUTBACK AT THE 40' 16” W, A DISTANCE OF 41.12 FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD AT THE SOUTH END OF A CUTBACK AT THE  16” W, A DISTANCE OF 41.12 FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD AT THE SOUTH END OF A CUTBACK AT THE 16” W, A DISTANCE OF 41.12 FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD AT THE SOUTH END OF A CUTBACK AT THE  W, A DISTANCE OF 41.12 FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD AT THE SOUTH END OF A CUTBACK AT THE W, A DISTANCE OF 41.12 FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD AT THE SOUTH END OF A CUTBACK AT THE  A DISTANCE OF 41.12 FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD AT THE SOUTH END OF A CUTBACK AT THE A DISTANCE OF 41.12 FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD AT THE SOUTH END OF A CUTBACK AT THE  DISTANCE OF 41.12 FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD AT THE SOUTH END OF A CUTBACK AT THE DISTANCE OF 41.12 FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD AT THE SOUTH END OF A CUTBACK AT THE  OF 41.12 FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD AT THE SOUTH END OF A CUTBACK AT THE OF 41.12 FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD AT THE SOUTH END OF A CUTBACK AT THE  41.12 FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD AT THE SOUTH END OF A CUTBACK AT THE 41.12 FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD AT THE SOUTH END OF A CUTBACK AT THE  FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD AT THE SOUTH END OF A CUTBACK AT THE FEET TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD AT THE SOUTH END OF A CUTBACK AT THE  TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD AT THE SOUTH END OF A CUTBACK AT THE TO A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD AT THE SOUTH END OF A CUTBACK AT THE  A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD AT THE SOUTH END OF A CUTBACK AT THE A FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD AT THE SOUTH END OF A CUTBACK AT THE  FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD AT THE SOUTH END OF A CUTBACK AT THE FOUND 5/8” IRON ROD AT THE SOUTH END OF A CUTBACK AT THE  5/8” IRON ROD AT THE SOUTH END OF A CUTBACK AT THE 5/8” IRON ROD AT THE SOUTH END OF A CUTBACK AT THE  IRON ROD AT THE SOUTH END OF A CUTBACK AT THE IRON ROD AT THE SOUTH END OF A CUTBACK AT THE  ROD AT THE SOUTH END OF A CUTBACK AT THE ROD AT THE SOUTH END OF A CUTBACK AT THE  AT THE SOUTH END OF A CUTBACK AT THE AT THE SOUTH END OF A CUTBACK AT THE  THE SOUTH END OF A CUTBACK AT THE THE SOUTH END OF A CUTBACK AT THE  SOUTH END OF A CUTBACK AT THE SOUTH END OF A CUTBACK AT THE  END OF A CUTBACK AT THE END OF A CUTBACK AT THE  OF A CUTBACK AT THE OF A CUTBACK AT THE  A CUTBACK AT THE A CUTBACK AT THE  CUTBACK AT THE CUTBACK AT THE  AT THE AT THE  THE THE INTERSECTION OF SAID WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF JONES RD., AND THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.M. 529,  OF SAID WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF JONES RD., AND THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.M. 529, OF SAID WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF JONES RD., AND THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.M. 529,  SAID WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF JONES RD., AND THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.M. 529, SAID WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF JONES RD., AND THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.M. 529,  WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF JONES RD., AND THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.M. 529, WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF JONES RD., AND THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.M. 529,  RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF JONES RD., AND THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.M. 529, RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF JONES RD., AND THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.M. 529,  LINE OF JONES RD., AND THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.M. 529, LINE OF JONES RD., AND THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.M. 529,  OF JONES RD., AND THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.M. 529, OF JONES RD., AND THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.M. 529,  JONES RD., AND THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.M. 529, JONES RD., AND THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.M. 529,  RD., AND THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.M. 529, RD., AND THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.M. 529,  AND THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.M. 529, AND THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.M. 529,  THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.M. 529, THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.M. 529,  NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.M. 529, NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.M. 529,  RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.M. 529, RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.M. 529,  LINE OF F.M. 529, LINE OF F.M. 529,  OF F.M. 529, OF F.M. 529,  F.M. 529, F.M. 529,  529, 529, FOR THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT, THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE  THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT, THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT, THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE  SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT, THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT, THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE  CORNER OF SAID 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT, THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE CORNER OF SAID 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT, THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE  OF SAID 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT, THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE OF SAID 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT, THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE  SAID 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT, THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE SAID 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT, THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE  0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT, THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE 0.7390 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT, THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE  ACRE ROAD EASEMENT, THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE ACRE ROAD EASEMENT, THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE  ROAD EASEMENT, THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE ROAD EASEMENT, THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE  EASEMENT, THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE EASEMENT, THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE  THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE  SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE  CORNER OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE CORNER OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE  OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE  SAID 2.1282 ACRE SAID 2.1282 ACRE  2.1282 ACRE 2.1282 ACRE  ACRE ACRE TRACT AND THE TRACT DESCRIBED HEREIN; THENCE: S 87° 09' 23” W, WITH THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.M. 529, THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE S 87° 09' 23” W, WITH THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.M. 529, THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE  87° 09' 23” W, WITH THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.M. 529, THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE 87° 09' 23” W, WITH THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.M. 529, THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE  09' 23” W, WITH THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.M. 529, THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE 09' 23” W, WITH THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.M. 529, THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE  23” W, WITH THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.M. 529, THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE 23” W, WITH THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.M. 529, THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE  W, WITH THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.M. 529, THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE W, WITH THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.M. 529, THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE  WITH THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.M. 529, THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE WITH THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.M. 529, THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE  THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.M. 529, THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.M. 529, THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE  NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.M. 529, THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.M. 529, THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE  RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.M. 529, THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF F.M. 529, THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE  LINE OF F.M. 529, THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE LINE OF F.M. 529, THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE  OF F.M. 529, THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE OF F.M. 529, THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE  F.M. 529, THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE F.M. 529, THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE  529, THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE 529, THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE  THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE  SOUTH LINE OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE  LINE OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE LINE OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE  OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE OF SAID 2.1282 ACRE  SAID 2.1282 ACRE SAID 2.1282 ACRE  2.1282 ACRE 2.1282 ACRE  ACRE ACRE TRACT, SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT AND SAID LOT 48B, A DISTANCE OF 404.89 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND  SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT AND SAID LOT 48B, A DISTANCE OF 404.89 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND SAID 4.0026 ACRE TRACT AND SAID LOT 48B, A DISTANCE OF 404.89 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND  4.0026 ACRE TRACT AND SAID LOT 48B, A DISTANCE OF 404.89 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND 4.0026 ACRE TRACT AND SAID LOT 48B, A DISTANCE OF 404.89 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND  ACRE TRACT AND SAID LOT 48B, A DISTANCE OF 404.89 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND ACRE TRACT AND SAID LOT 48B, A DISTANCE OF 404.89 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND  TRACT AND SAID LOT 48B, A DISTANCE OF 404.89 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND TRACT AND SAID LOT 48B, A DISTANCE OF 404.89 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND  AND SAID LOT 48B, A DISTANCE OF 404.89 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND AND SAID LOT 48B, A DISTANCE OF 404.89 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND  SAID LOT 48B, A DISTANCE OF 404.89 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND SAID LOT 48B, A DISTANCE OF 404.89 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND  LOT 48B, A DISTANCE OF 404.89 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND LOT 48B, A DISTANCE OF 404.89 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND  48B, A DISTANCE OF 404.89 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND 48B, A DISTANCE OF 404.89 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND  A DISTANCE OF 404.89 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND A DISTANCE OF 404.89 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND  DISTANCE OF 404.89 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND DISTANCE OF 404.89 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND  OF 404.89 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND OF 404.89 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND  404.89 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND 404.89 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND  FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND  TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND  THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND  POINT OF BEGINNING AND POINT OF BEGINNING AND  OF BEGINNING AND OF BEGINNING AND  BEGINNING AND BEGINNING AND  AND AND CONTAINING 6.150 ACRES OF LAND SITUATED IN THE CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE, HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TITLE COMMITMENT PROVIDED BY CHICAGO TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY, GF NO: SCT-48-4300112207098-DB, EFFECTIVE DATE: NOVEMBER 13, 2022, ISSUED DATE: DECEMBER 5, 2022. LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF LAND: - 6.1588 ACRES OUT OF THE TRACTS CONVEYED IN/UNDER HARRIS COUNTY CLERK'S FILE NOS. T303407 AND 20120273382. SCHEDULE B: 1. RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS OF RECORD: - VOLUME 10, PAGE 46, M.R. - INCLUDES SUBJECT TRACT - VOLUME 375, PAGE 23, M.R. - INCLUDES SUBJECT TRACT 10.  g. VOLUME 1024, PAGE 23, D.R., AS DEFINED IN CLERK'S FILE NO. J621762 - DOES NOT INCLUDE SUBJECT TRACT, NOT SHOWN - PIPE LINE RIGHT-OF-WAY EASEMENT h. CLERK'S FILE NO. W201062 - INCLUDES SUBJECT TRACT AS SHOWN - WATER LINE EASEMENT  i. CLERK'S FILE NO. N154090 - DOES NOT INCLUDE SUBJECT, NOT SHOWN - 10' WIDE EASEMENT AND AN AERIAL EASEMENT 11'-6" WIDE FROM A PLANE 16' ABOVE THE GROUND UPWARD j. CLERK'S FILE NO. H877186 - DOES NOT INCLUDE SUBJECT TRACT, NOT SHOWN - 10' WIDE EASEMENT AND AN AERIAL EASEMENT 10' WIDE FROM AN INCLINED PLANE 15' TO 19'-2" ABOVE THE GROUND UPWARD k. CLERK'S FILE NO. H769764 - INCLUDES SUBJECT TRACT AS SHOWN - 10' WIDE EASEMENT AND 99' LONG, AN AERIAL EASEMENT 10' WIDE FROM AN INCLINED PLANE 15' TO 19'-2" ABOVE THE GROUND UPWARD l. AN EASEMENT 10 FEET WIDE ALONG THE SOUTH PROPERTY LINE AND 8 FEET WIDE ALONG THE NORTH PROPERTY LINE FOR THE USE OF PUBLIC UTILITIES AS REFLECTED BY THE RECORDED PLAT. - INCLUDES SUBJECT TRACT AS SHOWN m. CLERK'S FILE NO's. 20070677705 AND 20080047018 - DOES NOT CROSS SUBJECT TRACT, SHOWN - EASEMENTS n. CLERK'S FILE NO. 20120107051 - DOES NOT CROSS SUBJECT TRACT, NOT SHOWN - EASEMENT TO CENTERPOINT ENERGY HOUSTON ELECTRIC LLC o. VOLUME 10, PAGE 46, M.R. AND VOLUME 375, PAGE 23, M.R. - INCLUDES SUBJECT TRACT AS SHOWN. - EASEMENTS AND BUILDING SET BACK LINES p. VOLUME 844, PAGE 190, D.R. - DOES NOT INCLUDE SUBJECT TRACT - 1/32 ROYALTY INTEREST q. VOLUME 5255, PAGE 585, D.R. - DOES NOT INCLUDE SUBJECT TRACT - 1/16 NON-PARTICIPATING ROYALTY INTEREST r. CLERK'S FILE NO. T392503 - DOES NOT INCLUDE SUBJECT TRACT - OIL, GAS AND MINERAL LEASE s. VOLUME 1037, PAGE 424, D.R. - DOES NOT INCLUDE SUBJECT TRACT - 1/16 ROYALTY INTEREST t. VOLUME 949, PAGE 86, D.R. - DOES NOT INCLUDE SUBJECT TRACT - 1/16 ROYALTY INTEREST u. CLERK'S FILE NO. T392502, RATIFIED BY CLERK'S FILE NO's. U149952, U149953, U149954, U351942, U351944, AND U351945 - DOES NOT INCLUDE SUBJECT TRACT  - OIL, GAS AND MINERAL LEASE v. VOLUME 844, PAGE 190, D.R. - DOCUMENT NOT PROVIDED - 1/16 ROYALTY INTEREST w. VOLUME 1003, PAGE 18, D.R. - INCLUDES SUBJECT TRACT - 1/32 ROYALTY INTEREST x. VOLUME 4531, PAGE 81, D.R. - INCLUDES SUBJECT TRACT - 1/32 ROYALTY INTEREST y. CLERK'S FILE NO. T303407 - INCLUDES SUBJECT TRACT - ALL THE OIL, GAS AND OTHER MINERALS, THE ROYALTIES, BONUSES, RENTALS AND ALL ALL THE OIL, GAS AND OTHER MINERALS, THE ROYALTIES, BONUSES, RENTALS AND ALL OTHER RIGHTS. . aa. CLERK'S FILE NO. V630325 - DOES NOT INCLUDE THE SUBJECT TRACT - CERTIFICATION OF OSSF REQUIRING MAINTENANCE ab. CLERK'S FILE NO. L391811 - DOES NOT INCLUDE SUBJECT TRACT - NOTICE OF PRIVATE SEWAGE FACILITY ac. BUILDING SET BACK LINE 25 FEET IN WIDTH ALONG THE NORTH AND SOUTH PROPERTY LINE AND BUILDING SET BACK LINE 25 FEET IN WIDTH ALONG THE NORTH AND SOUTH PROPERTY LINE AND 7.5 FEET WIDE ALONG THE EAST AND WEST PROPERTY LINES AS REFLECTED BY THE RECORDED PLAT. - INCLUDES SUBJECT TRACT AS SHOWN ad. ANY AND ALL ZONING ORDINANCES OR PROPOSED ORDINANCES INCLUDING THOSE BY THE CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE TEXAS. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE TABLE SSMH #1 (PT.#2726) RIM ELEVATION: 110.48' IN 8" PVC EAST - 102.02' OUT 8" PVC NORTH - 102.00' SSMH #2 (PT.#1479) RIM ELEVATION: 109.60' IN 8" PVC SOUTH - 101.24' IN 6" PVC SOUTH (ELEVATED) - 104.02' OUT 8" PVC NORTH - 101.22' SSMH #3 (PT.#2530) RIM ELEVATION: 108.99' IN 8" PVC SOUTH - 100.79' OUT 8" PVC NORTH - 100.75' SSMH#4 (PT.#2065) RIM ELEVATION: 109.61' IN 8" PVC SOUTH - 99.91' OUT 8" PVC NORTH - 99.86' SSMH#5 (PT.#1480) RIM ELEVATION: 109.85' IN 8" PVC SOUTH - 98.43' OUT 8" PVC NORTH - 98.47' *NOT SHOWN HEREON* SSMH#6 (PT.#3282) RIM ELEVATION: 110.43' IN 4" PVC EAST - 105.96' OUT 4" PVC WEST - 105.91'

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM INVERT TABLE GI #1 (POINT #4027) TOP = 107.35' OUT - 24" RCP S - FL=103.15' *INTO 36" RCP - FL = 102.64' SDMH #1 (POINT #4103) RIM ELEVATION = 109.56' IN - 36" RCP W - FL= 102.49' OUT - 36" RCP E - FL= 102.47' GI #2 (POINT #3758) TOP=106.40' OUT - 24" RCP S FL= 103.84' *INTO 36" RCP - FL= 102.44' GI #3 (POINT #2866) TOP = 108.06' OUT - 18" RCP S - FL=103.83' *INTO SDMH #2 SDMH #2 (POINT #2854) RIM ELEVATION = 109.84' IN - 18" RCP - N - FL= 102.96' IN - 36" RCP - W - FL= 102.35' OUT - 36" RCP E - FL= 102.44' SDMH #3 (POINT #5112) RIM ELEVATION = 107.37' 6IN - 30" RCP W FL= 100.45' GI #4 (POINT #5169) TOP = 110.40R OUT - 18" RCP - N - FL= 106.90' *INTO SDMH #4 SDMH #4 (POINT #5168) RIM ELEVATION = 110.18' IN - 18" RCP S - FL= 103.59' IN - 4'x4' BOX CULVERT - W - FL= 103.46' OUT - 4'x4' BOX CULVERT - E - FL= 103.37' GI #5 (POINT #5192) TOP = 109.41' OUT - 18" RCP - N - FL= 106.44' GI #6 (POINT #5212) TOP = 107.82' OUT - 18" RCP - N - FL= 105.39' *INTO SDMH #5*

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCHMARK TABLE BM #100 A SET MAG NAIL IN A CONCRETE CURB AT THE END OF AN ISLAND IN THE CENTER OF JONES RD. LIES S 61°28'46" E A DISTANCE OF 77.12' FROM A SET 5/8" IRON ROD FOR A POINT OF CURVATURE IN THE EASTERN PROPERTY LINE OF THE SUBJECT TRACT.  ELEVATION: 109.87' BM #101 A SET MAG NAIL IN CONCRETE AT THE BASE OF A TRAFFIC SIGNAL CABINET LIES S 26°59'40" W A DISTANCE OF 18.57' FROM THE SOUTHEAST PROPERTY CORNER OF THE SUBJECT TRACT IN THE WESTERN RIGHT OF WAY OF JONES RD. ELEVATION: 110.42'

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD ELECTRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER LINE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM SEWER LINE (>12") >12") 12") 

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER LINE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDERGROUND FIBER OPTIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY PEDESTAL/RISER

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY MANHOLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY METER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIGHT POLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY VALVE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB & GUTTER ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAJOR CONTOUR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY R/W LINE (QT NET)

AutoCAD SHX Text
MINOR CONTOUR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINGLE POST SIGN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MULTI-POST SIGN/BILLBOARD 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC 750.50 G 750.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPOT ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
750.17 X

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOLLARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAFFIC SIGNAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAFFIC CONTROL BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING STRUCTURE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS LINE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY POLE W/LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY POLE W/TRANSFORMER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY R/W LOT LINE (OTHERS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAFFIC ARROWS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIRE FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TS

AutoCAD SHX Text
750

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY CORNER (FOUND)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY CORNER (SET)

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCHMARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
STSP TW@P BW@P TC: G:  C&G SDMH  SSMH  FL:  S.W.S. D.W.S. S.Y.S. TMH SPG. F.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEEL TRAFFIC SIGNAL POLE TOP WIRE ELEVATION AT POLE BOTTOM WIRE ELEVATION AT POLE TOP OF CURB ELEVATION GUTTER ELEVATION CURB AND GUTTER STORM DRAIN MANHOLE  SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE  FLOWLINE ELEVATION SOLID WHITE STRIPE DASHED WHITE STRIPE SOLID YELLOW STRIPE TELEPHONE MANHOLE WATER SPIGOT FENCE TIE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE TABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPECIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRUNK DIA (IN)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPREAD (FT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
MULTI-TRUNK DIA (IN)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1591

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1592

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text
10" x 5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1593

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" x 4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1594

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1595

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1596

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1597

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1598

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
45

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1599

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
45

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1600

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text
7" x 7"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1601

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1602

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1603

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1604

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1605

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
45

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1606

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
45

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1607

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
55

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1608

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
55

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1609

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1610

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1611

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
55

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1612

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
55

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1613

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
55

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1614

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
55

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1615

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1616

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1617

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1618

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1619

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1620

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1621

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1622

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1623

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1624

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1625

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1626

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1627

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1628

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1629

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1630

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1631

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1632

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1633

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1634

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1635

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1636

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1637

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1638

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
4097

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
4098

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHINESE TALLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
4099

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHINESE TALLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
45

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
4100

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
4101

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
9" x 8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4102

AutoCAD SHX Text
HACKBERRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text
N / A

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM INVERT TABLE CONTINUED. SDMH #5 (POINT #5217) RIM ELEVATION = 109.50'' IN - 18" RCP - S - FL= 103.21' IN - 4'x4' BOX CULVERT - W - FL= 102.94' OUT - 4'x4' BOX CULVERT - E - FL= 102.94' GI #7 (POINT #1184) TOP = 106.86' 24" RCP - S - FL= 104.07' OUT - 18" RCP - N - FL= 104.17' SDMH #6 (POINT #5115) RIM ELEVATION = 107.43' IN - 4'x4' BOX CULVERT - W - FL= 101.06' OUT - 4'x4' BOX CULVERT - E  GI #8 (POINT #3192) TOP = 106.95' OUT - 18" RCP - W - FL= 106.19' *INTO SDMH #7* GI #9 (POINT #2563) TOP = 107.11' OUT - 18" RCP - E - FL=106.14' *INTO SDMH #7* SDMH #7 (POINT #3212) RIM ELEVATION = 110.09' IN - 18" RCP - W - FL= 103.88' IN - 18" RCP - E - FL= 103.89' OUT - 36" RCP - N - FL= 103.85'  GI #10 (POINT #2304) TOP = 107.90' OUT - 24" RCP - W - FL=104.11' *INTO SDMH #8* SDMH #8 (POINT #5105) RIM ELEVATION = 110.03' IN - 24" RCP - E - FL= 103.34' IN - 36" RCP - S - FL= 103.37'                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          OUT - 36" RCP - N - FL= 103.35' SDMH #9 (POINT #5111) RIM ELEVATION = 109.97' IN - 36" RCP - S - FL= 102.82'                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

AutoCAD SHX Text
SILT FENCE



Store 7956      Jersey Village, TX
89-7956-PE00                                              Date: 01.09.24  By:JK
Store 7956      Jersey Village, TX
89-7956-PE00                                              Date: 01.09.24  By:JK

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

21



B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

22



B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

23



B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

24



B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

25



B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

26



B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

27



B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

28



B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

29



B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

30



B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

31



B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

32



B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

33



B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

34



B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

35



CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE 

CERTIFICATION OF PUBLIC HEARING POSTING REQUIREMENTS 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT - PUBLIC HEARING 

January 30, 2024, at 7:00 P.M. 
 

Reason for Public Hearing: 

 

To receive written and oral comments from any interested person(s) concerning on the request of QT South, LLC, 

filed on behalf of owners Garfield Edmonds and Edmonds Company, for a variance to the Jersey Village Code 

of Ordinance at Chapter 14, Article IV, Division 2, Section 14-105, the Commercial Permitted Use and 

Conditional Use Table, to allow a gasoline filling station to be located in District H on a 6.150 acre tract of land 

conveyed in/under Harris County Clerk's File Nos. T303407 and 20120273382 and also identified as the 

properties located at 11518 FM 529 and 0 FM 529 (Corner of Jones and FM 529), which exceeds the minimum 

separation distance of 3,000 feet measured from property line to property line from any currently existing gasoline 

filling station. 
 

Owner Address City, State, ZIP 

Edmonds Company SW II 11625 Charles Road Jersey Village, TX 77041-2407 

Jones 529 Retail Partners Ltd 1207 Antoine Drive Houston, TX  77055-6920 

Edmonds Garfield S J III Trustee 11625 Charles Road Jersey Village, TX 77041-2407 

Weatherford U S LP 2000 St James Place Houston, TX  77056-4123 

Versaland Texas LLC 4401 Patterson Drive New Orleans, LA  70131-1917 

City of Houston PO Box 1526 Houston, TX  77251-1526 

County of Harris Tract 001 (Jones Rd) PO Box 1525 Houston, TX  77251-1525 
 

I, Lorri Coody, the duly appointed and acting City Secretary of the City of Jersey Village, Harris County, Texas, 

do hereby certify and attest that as part of my duties, I post official notices for the City of Jersey Village. 
 

As such, on January 9, 2024, and in accordance with the Jersey Village Code of Ordinances Part II, Ch. 14, Art. 

X, Section 14-10 (b)(2)(a) written notices were mailed to adjacent property owners at least eleven (11) days prior 

to date of the Public Hearing.  The property owners were mailed a written notice to the address listed in the 

following table: 

 

Witness my hand and seal of the City this 9th day of January 2024. 

 

       _____________________________________ 

       Lorri Coody, City Secretary 

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

36



CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE 
APPLICANT CERTIFICATION OF PUBLIC HEARING POSTING REQUIREMENTS 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT - January 30, 2024 - 7:00 P.M. 

Reason for Public Hearing: 

To receive written and oral comments from any interested person(s) concerning the request of 
QT South, LLC, filed on behalf of owners Garfield Edmonds and Edmonds Company, for a 
variance to the Jersey Village Code of Ordinance at Chapter 14, Article IV, Division 2, Section 
14-105, the Commercial Permitted Use and Conditional Use Table, to allow a gasoline filling 
station to be located in District H on a 6.150 acre tract of land conveyed in/under Harris County 
Clerk's File Nos. T303407 and 20120273382 and also identified as the properties located at 
11518 FM 529 and O FM 529 (Comer of Jones and FM 529), which exceeds the minimum 
separation distance of 3,000 feet measured from property line to property line from any currently 
existing gasoline filling station. 

I, Cathy Garland, for applicant QT South, LLC do hereby certify that: 

On ....,_ }a,.ru_,..l,CLX\, J ~ , 2024, at least ten days prior to the date of the hearing, placed 
on the properties lbcated at 11518 FM 529 and O FM 529 in Jersey Village, Texas which said 
properties are the subject of this hearing, signs indicating the type of relief sought or the 
proposed change in status of the property as well as the date, time and place of the hearing. The 
signs were placed at not more than 300-foot intervals across the property line fronting on the 
existing streets and were clearly visible from the streets. Each sign was located no more than ten 
feet from the property line and was no smaller than 18 inches by 24 inches, 

All in accordance with Section 14-10(b)(2)(b) of the Jersey Village Code of Ordinances. 

Signed this the J <{, day of .J()J/\,~ , 202 _!:{_. 

~~ Cathy GarJai for Applicant QT South LLC 

THE ST A TE OF TEXAS § 
COUNTY OF HARRIS § 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, this day personally appeared Cathy Garland, known to 
me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to 
me that they executed the same for the purpose and consideration therein expressed. 

GIV~N UNDER my hand and seal of office this ~ day of k~ 
2~02 "\' • l;l..~~ . 

,~ ~~ ,,,~~~',,, BR · 
-.~.x_.,._-=---L-L-1--+-----''-----'-.X..>'--___,,__--"------- -- lo;.······~~;-:;. OOKELIN BORDOFSKE- ' 
Notary Public, tate of Texas gfr..J~;~;;Notary Public, State of T 

• ~·. ~ .-.,::: C ,exas 
~-{i ;;.·~;?· omm. Expires l0-25-2027 

,,,.,.,,, Notary ID l 3◄619242 

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

37



Script for BOA Public Hearing on January 30, 2024 
 

Read Item E on the Agenda and confirm that all meeting posting 
requirements have been met - then say: 
 

I now call to order this public hearing.  Everyone desiring to speak shall give his name and 

address and will be given 5 minutes to present information during the meeting.   

The purpose of today’s hearing is to receive written and oral comments from any interested 
person(s) concerning the request of QT South, LLC, filed on behalf of owners Garfield 
Edmonds and Edmonds Company, for a variance to the Jersey Village Code of Ordinance 
at Chapter 14, Article IV, Division 2, Section 14-105, the Commercial Permitted Use and 
Conditional Use Table, to allow a gasoline filling station to be located in District H on a 
6.150 acre tract of land conveyed in/under Harris County Clerk's File Nos. T303407 and 
20120273382 and also identified as the properties located at 11518 FM 529 and 0 FM 529 
(Corner of Jones and FM 529), which exceeds the minimum separation distance of 3,000 
feet measured from property line to property line from any currently existing gasoline 
filling station. 
 
Step 1: Call the applicant to present his/her case and all evidence supporting his/her plea 
 

Step 2: Call the zoning official to present any information that he/she deems necessary 
or appropriate relative to the application 
 

Step 3: Call on those opposed to the granting of the application to present their evidence 
and arguments 
 

Step 4: Call the applicant for the right of rebuttal 
 

Step 5: Order the hearing closed 
 
 (After everyone has spoken . . . or if no one desires to speak, finish the meeting with 
the following) 
 

There being no one (else) desiring to speak, I now close this public hearing concerning the 
request of QT South, LLC, filed on behalf of owners Garfield Edmonds and Edmonds 
Company, for a variance to the Jersey Village Code of Ordinance at Chapter 14, Article 
IV, Division 2, Section 14-105, the Commercial Permitted Use and Conditional Use Table, 
to allow a gasoline filling station to be located in District H on a 6.150 acre tract of land 
conveyed in/under Harris County Clerk's File Nos. T303407 and 20120273382 and also 
identified as the properties located at 11518 FM 529 and 0 FM 529 (Corner of Jones and 
FM 529), which exceeds the minimum separation distance of 3,000 feet measured from 
property line to property line from any currently existing gasoline filling station. 

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

38



BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT - CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE, TEXAS - AGENDA REQUEST 
 

AGENDA DATE: January 30, 2024   AGENDA ITEM:  E1 
 
AGENDA SUBJECT:  Discuss and take appropriate action concerning the request of QT South, 
LLC, filed on behalf of owners Garfield Edmonds and Edmonds Company, for a variance to the 
Jersey Village Code of Ordinance at Chapter 14, Article IV, Division 2, Section 14-105, the 
Commercial Permitted Use and Conditional Use Table, to allow a gasoline filling station to be 
located in District H on a 6.150 acre tract of land conveyed in/under Harris County Clerk's File 
Nos. T303407 and 20120273382 and also identified as the properties located at 11518 FM 529 and 
0 FM 529 (Corner of Jones and FM 529), which exceeds the minimum separation distance of 3,000 
feet measured from property line to property line from any currently existing gasoline filling station. 
 
Department/Prepared By:   Lorri Coody, City Secretary 
 
EXHIBITS:    Application and Other Documents Included in PH Item 
 14-105 – Commercial Permitted Use Table 
 Proposed Order 
   
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
QT South, LLC, has filed on behalf of owners Garfield Edmonds and Edmonds Company, a request 
for variance to the Jersey Village Code of Ordinance at Chapter 14, Article IV, Division 2, Section 
14-105, the Commercial Permitted Use and Conditional Use Table, to allow a gasoline filling 
station to be located in District H on a 6.150 acre tract of land conveyed in/under Harris County 
Clerk's File Nos. T303407 and 20120273382 and also identified as the properties located at 11518 
FM 529 and 0 FM 529 (Corner of Jones and FM 529), which exceeds the minimum separation 
distance of 3,000 feet measured from property line to property line from any currently existing 
gasoline filling station.  
 
The Board has previously conducted the Public Hearing in connection with this request.  This item 
is to act upon the request. 
 
The Board, in making its decision on the request for variance, must consider: 

  
 if the request for variance is contrary to the public’s interest;  
 if, due to special conditions, enforcement of Chapter 14, Article IV, Division 2, Section 

14-105 would result in an unnecessary hardship; and 
 that in granting the variance, the spirit of this chapter would be upheld and observed. 

  
In exercising its authority, the Board MAY consider the following as grounds, as presented by the 
applicant, to determine whether compliance with the ordinance as applied to a structure would result 
in unnecessary hardship:  

 
(1)  the financial cost of compliance is greater than 50 percent of the appraised value of the 

structure as shown on the most recent appraisal roll certified to the assessor for the 
municipality under Section 26.01, Tax Code; 

(2)  compliance would result in a loss to the lot on which the structure is located of at least 25 
percent of the area on which development may physically occur; 

(3)  compliance would result in the structure not being in compliance with a requirement of a 
municipal ordinance, building code, or other requirement; 

(4)  compliance would result in the unreasonable encroachment on an adjacent property or 
easement; or 

(5)  the municipality considers the structure to be a nonconforming structure. 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:   
Discuss and take appropriate action concerning the request of QT South, LLC, filed on behalf of 
owners Garfield Edmonds and Edmonds Company, for a variance to the Jersey Village Code of 

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

39

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Furldefense.proofpoint.com%2Fv2%2Furl%3Fu%3Dhttp-3A__www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us_GetStatute.aspx-3FCode-3DTX-26Value-3D26.01%26d%3DDwMFAg%26c%3DeuGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM%26r%3D1SBq7I19s89J07Bh2Gx9NmfuL2g-Osl7qiF9Mh-wYy0%26m%3DqQqzkttHF2OaoN8kTRCNu5pF_E3CsZCEdkL1i8HQZqA%26s%3D0sLQgHC3i6GILhAZ-9rAZDjDR8fw98ABYVTmmsMF5YY%26e%3D&data=04%7C01%7Clcoody%40jerseyvillagetx.com%7C8f33c6b730c142f16a7008d9a55c81fc%7Ce67a48990a084595ae5fc1d052866511%7C0%7C0%7C637722639024750138%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=B%2BjHkxlLxOQ9ZmqwJpehpdYpIi7aVo5uVT1EFSUSZag%3D&reserved=0


Ordinance at Chapter 14, Article IV, Division 2, Section 14-105, the Commercial Permitted Use 
and Conditional Use Table, to allow a gasoline filling station to be located in District H on a 6.150 
acre tract of land conveyed in/under Harris County Clerk's File Nos. T303407 and 20120273382 
and also identified as the properties located at 11518 FM 529 and 0 FM 529 (Corner of Jones and 
FM 529), which exceeds the minimum separation distance of 3,000 feet measured from property 
line to property line from any currently existing gasoline filling station. 

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

40



(a)

Sec. 14-105. - Commercial permitted and conditional use tables.

Table 14-105(A). Commercial permitted uses.

KEY/LEGEND

P = Permitted Use

PC = Permitted with Conditions

SUP = Special Use Permit

District F First Business District

District G Second Business District

District H Industrial District

District J Third Business District

District J-1 Fourth Business District

District K Fifth Business District

MVSOD Motor Vehicles Sales Overlay District

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 202441

https://library.municode.com/


USE District

F G H J J-1 K MVSOD

Adult entertainment. SUP

Agriculture. P P P P P P

Apparel manufacturing. PC 

Art gallery. P P P P P

Assembling. PC PC PC 

Auto body shop. SUP

Automobile repair shop. PC 

Bail bond service. SUP

Bakery (industrial). PC 

Bank, �nancial, and insurance

service institution.

P P P P P

Barber, beauty store, or salon. P P P P P

(1)

(2) (2) (2)

(3)

(4)

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 202442



Bar/club. SUP SUP SUP SUP SUP SUP

Beer and wine sales. SUP SUP SUP SUP SUP SUP

Bookstore. P P P P P

Brew pub. SUP SUP SUP SUP SUP SUP

Broadcasting Studio. P P P

Building contractor and related

activities.

P

Building materials, sales, and

storage.

P P

Cafe and cafeteria. P P P P P

Cannabidiol shop (CBD shop). P

Carwash. SUP SUP

Cell phone and computer repair

business.

SUP

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 202443



Child day-care operation (licensed

child-care centers and school-age

program centers).

SUP SUP SUP

Cigar shop/lounge. SUP SUP SUP

City of Jersey Village: water supply

reservoirs, �lter beds, towers, surface

or below surface tanks, artesian

wells, water pumping plants and

water wells.

P P P P P

Cleaners (clothing), tailor, and retail

laundry.

P P P P P

Clinic. P P P P

Clothing boutique. P P P P P

Cold storage plant. P

Commercial vehicle repair shop. PC 

Concrete product manufacturer. SUP

(5)

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 202444



Credit access business. SUP

Customarily incidental use. PC PC PC PC PC PC 

Dancing studio, exercise class, and

martial arts facility.

P P P P P

Department store. P P P P P

Distribution and warehousing. P P P P

Driving range. SUP SUP SUP SUP

Drug store and pharmacy. SUP SUP SUP SUP SUP

Dry cleaning and laundry plant

(industrial).

SUP

Educational institution, services, and

learning center.

P P P P P

Farm implement machinery sales and

storage.

P

Farmers market. P P P P P P

(6) (6) (6) (6) (6) (6)

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 202445



Florist and �ower shop. P P P P P

Food processing and packaging, with

the exception of slaughtering.

SUP

Food truck park. P

Furniture manufacturing. PC 

Garage, public. P P P P P

Gasoline �lling station. PC PC PC PC PC PC 

General retail. P P P P P

Golf course and country club. SUP SUP SUP SUP

Grocery store. P P P P P

Hardware store. P P P P P

Head/smoke shop. SUP

Health club. P P P P

(7)

(8) (8) (8) (8) (8) (8)

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 202446



Heating, plumbing and air

conditioning, sale, and repair.

PC 

Home good store. P P P P P

Hookah bar/lounge. SUP

Hospital. P P P P P

Hotel and motel. P P P P P

Instrument and meter

manufacturing.

PC

Jewelry and watch manufacturing. SUP

Junk or salvage yard. SUP

Library and museum. P P P P P

Liquor store (excluding drive-up or

pick-up services).

SUP SUP SUP SUP SUP SUP

Machining. PC 

(9)

(10)

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 202447



Manufacture of printed material. PC PC PC PC 

Massage establishment. SUP

Medical and dental o�ce. P P P P P

Medical research and development. SUP

Mini-storage lot. SUP

Mini-storage facility. SUP SUP

Miniature golf course. P P P P P P

Motor vehicle sales. PC 

Multi-family housing for senior

citizens.

SUP

Multi-purpose entertainment

complex.

P P P P P P

Municipal and governmental

buildings, police stations and �re

stations.

P P P P P P

(11) (11) (11) (11)

(12)

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 202448



Musical instrument shop and supply

store.

P P P P P

Nursing care center. SUP SUP SUP

O�ce supply store. P P P P P

Oil, gas, and minerals; extraction,

production, drilling operations, etc.

PC 

Optical goods manufacturing. PC 

Parking lot. SUP SUP SUP SUP SUP SUP

Pawnshop. P

Permanent produce market. SUP

Pet and pet supply store. P P P P P

Place of worship. P P P P P

Plant nursery. P P

Pool supply store. P P P P P

(13)

(14)

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 202449



Precious metal dealer. SUP

Professional o�ce and business

o�ce.

P P P P P P

Professional and technical services. P P P P P P

Public park and playground, public

recreational facility, and community

building.

P P P P P

Railroad and related facilities. P

Real estate, rental, and leasing o�ce. P P P P P

Restaurant and delicatessen. P P P P P

Scienti�c research and development. P P P P

Sheet metal processing. PC 

Short-term rental. P

Sign and architectural graphic

manufacturing.

PC PC PC PC 

(15)

(16) (16) (16) (16)

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 202450



Specialty food store. P P P P P

Sporting good sales. PC PC PC PC PC 

Stadium SUP SUP SUP SUP SUP SUP

Tattoo parlor and body modi�cation

shop.

SUP

Telecommunication tower. SUP P

Telephone switching facility. SUP SUP SUP

Temporary building. PC 

Theater. P P P P P

Truck terminal. SUP

Utility substation and power lines. PC PC PC PC PC 

Veterinarian services. SUP SUP SUP SUP SUP

Wholesale or warehousing. P P P P P

Wine tasting room/facility. P P P P P

(17) (17) (17) (17) (17)

(18)

(19) (19) (19) (19) (19)

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 202451



(b)

Woodworking shop, artisanal. PC 

Table 14-105(B). Commercial conditional uses.

# Conditional Uses Zoning

District

Conditions

1 Apparel manufacturing. H Maintenance, fabrication and repair of equipment

or machinery and manufacturing, processing and

assembly of materials, products and goods shall be

performed only on a paved area located within the

building lines of a lot, whether within or outside of a

building.

2 Assembling. J, J-1, K Maintenance, fabrication and repair of equipment

or machinery and manufacturing, processing and

assembly of materials, products and goods shall be

performed only on a paved area located within the

building lines of a lot, whether within or outside of a

building.

(20)

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 202452

https://library.municode.com/


3 Automobile repair shop. H Maintenance, fabrication and repair of equipment

or machinery and manufacturing, processing and

assembly of materials, products and goods shall be

performed only on a paved area located within the

building lines of a lot, whether within or outside of a

building.

4 Bakery (industrial). H Provided that such use be not so obnoxious or

o�ensive as to be reasonably calculated to disturb

persons of ordinary temper, sensibilities and

disposition by reason of emission of odor, gases,

and/or fumes.

5 Commercial vehicle repair

shop.

H Maintenance, fabrication and repair of equipment

or machinery and manufacturing, processing and

assembly of materials, products and goods shall be

performed only on a paved area located within the

building lines of a lot, whether within or outside of a

building.

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 202453



6 Customarily incidental use. F, G, H, J,

J-1, K

Must be customarily incidental to a permitted

principal use located on the same building site and

listed in Table 14-105(A), provided that such use is

not so obnoxious or o�ensive as to be reasonably

calculated to disturb persons of ordinary temper,

sensibilities, and disposition by reason of vibration,

noise, view or the emission of odor, dust, smoke, or

pollution of any kind.

7 Furniture manufacturing. H Maintenance, fabrication and repair of equipment

or machinery and manufacturing, processing and

assembly of materials, products and goods shall be

performed only on a paved area located within the

building lines of a lot, whether within or outside of a

building.

8 Gasoline �lling station. F, G, H, J, J-1,

K

Must have a minimum separation distance of 3,000

feet measured from property line to property line

from any currently existing gasoline �lling station.

Provided that all storage tanks for gasoline shall be

below the surface of the ground.

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 202454

https://library.municode.com/


9 Heating, plumbing and air

conditioning, sales, and repair.

H Maintenance, fabrication and repair of equipment

or machinery and manufacturing, processing and

assembly of materials, products and goods shall be

performed only on a paved area located within the

building lines of a lot, whether within or outside of a

building.

10 Machining. H Maintenance, fabrication and repair of equipment

or machinery and manufacturing, processing and

assembly of materials, products and goods shall be

performed only on a paved area located within the

building lines of a lot, whether within or outside of a

building.

11 Manufacture of printed

material.

H, J, J-1, K Maintenance, fabrication and repair of equipment

or machinery and manufacturing, processing and

assembly of materials, products and goods shall be

performed only on a paved area located within the

building lines of a lot, whether within or outside of a

building.

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 202455



12 Motor vehicle sales MVSOD Vehicles held for sales, lease, or rental in any

business or industrial district shall not be parked or

stored on unpaved surfaces.

13 Oil, gas, and minerals;

extraction, production, drilling

operations, etc.

H No oil, gas or other mineral exploration, production

or drilling operations for minerals of any kind shall

be conducted on any lot or parcel of land within the

city except in zoning district H

14 Optical goods manufacturing. H Maintenance, fabrication and repair of equipment

or machinery and manufacturing, processing and

assembly of materials, products and goods shall be

performed only on a paved area located within the

building lines of a lot, whether within or outside of a

building.

15 Sheet metal processing. H Maintenance, fabrication and repair of equipment

or machinery and manufacturing, processing and

assembly of materials, products and goods shall be

performed only on a paved area located within the

building lines of a lot, whether within or outside of a

building.

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 202456



16 Sign and architectural graphic

manufacturing.

H, J, J-1, K Maintenance, fabrication and repair of equipment

or machinery and manufacturing, processing and

assembly of materials, products and goods shall be

performed only on a paved area located within the

building lines of a lot, whether within or outside of a

building.

17 Sporting good sales. F, G, J, J-1, K Sporting goods sales, not including boats, boat

motors, mopeds, recreational vehicles, ATVs, golf

carts, motorcycles, or motor bikes.

18 Temporary building. H Must be incidental to the construction of buildings

permitted in the district and which shall be removed

when work is complete.

19 Utility substation and power

lines.

F, H, J, J-1, K Provided that any such accessory use shall not be so

obnoxious or o�ensive as to be reasonably

calculated to disturb persons of ordinary temper,

sensibilities, and disposition by reason of vibrations,

noise, view or the emission of odor, dust, smoke or

pollution of any other kind.

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 202457



20 Woodworking shop, artisanal. H Maintenance, fabrication and repair of equipment

or machinery and manufacturing, processing and

assembly of materials, products and goods shall be

performed only on a paved area located within the

building lines of a lot, whether within or outside of a

building.

(Ord. No. 2023-13, § 5, 5-17-2023)

Editor's note— Ord. No 2023, §§ 5, 6, adopted May 17, 2023, renumbered the former § 14-105 as § 14-106 and enacted a new § 14-105 as set out herein.

The historical notation has been retained with the amended provisions for reference purposes.

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 202458



   

 
 

 
 
 
 

CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE - BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT  
ORDER NO. 2024-01 

 
WHEREAS, on December 13, 2024, QT South, LLC, filed on behalf of owners Garfield Edmonds 
and Edmonds Company, a request for variance to the Jersey Village Code of Ordinance at Chapter 
14, Article IV, Division 2, Section 14-105, the Commercial Permitted Use and Conditional Use 
Table, to allow a gasoline filling station to be located in District H on a 6.150 acre tract of land 
conveyed in/under Harris County Clerk's File Nos. T303407 and 20120273382 and also identified 
as the properties located at 11518 FM 529 and 0 FM 529 (Corner of Jones and FM 529), which 
exceeds the minimum separation distance of 3,000 feet measured from property line to property 
line from any currently existing gasoline filling station. 
 
WHEREAS, the Board conducted a Public Hearing and received information from the Public and 
from the Applicant on January 30, 2024; and  
 
WHEREAS, after closing the hearing, the Board in making its decision on the variance request 
considered: 
  
 if the request for variance is contrary to the public’s interest;  
 if, due to special conditions, enforcement of Chapter 14, Article IV, Division 2, Section 

14-105 will result in an unnecessary hardship for QT South, LLC; and 
 that in granting the variance, the spirit of this chapter will be upheld and observed;  

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDERED BY THE BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT OF THE 
CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE THAT: 
 
SECTION 1.   In consideration of the information before the Board, with a concurring vote of at 
least four (4) members, the Board voted to ____ GRANT _____ DENY the request of QT South, 
LLC, filed on behalf of owners Garfield Edmonds and Edmonds Company, for variance to the 
Jersey Village Code of Ordinance at Chapter 14, Article IV, Division 2, Section 14-105, the 
Commercial Permitted Use and Conditional Use Table, to allow a gasoline filling station to be 
located in District H on a 6.150 acre tract of land conveyed in/under Harris County Clerk's File 
Nos. T303407 and 20120273382 and also identified as the properties located at 11518 FM 529 
and 0 FM 529 (Corner of Jones and FM 529), which exceeds the minimum separation distance of 
3,000 feet measured from property line to property line from any currently existing gasoline filling 
station. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ORDERED this 30th day of January 2024. 
             
        ______________________________ 
        Andrew Mitcham, Chairman 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
Lorri Coody, City Secretary 

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

59



BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE, TEXAS  

AGENDA REQUEST 
 

AGENDA DATE:  January 30, 2024   AGENDA ITEM: F 
 
AGENDA SUBJECT: Consider amendments to the Rules of Procedure for the Board of 
Adjustment of the City of Jersey Village, Texas. 
 
Dept./Prepared By:  Lorri Coody, City Secretary    Date Submitted:  January 5, 2024 
 
EXHIBITS:   Rules of Procedure as amended on December 13, 2023 
 Information from Other Cities and Proposed New Form  

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
On December 13, 2023, the Board amended its Rules of Procedures to incorporate changes made 
by City Council regarding the appointment of a Board Chair and Vice Chair. 
 
During the discussions had on December 13, 2023, regarding amendments to the Board’s Rules of 
Procedures, the Board considered adding additional requirements pertaining to variance requests 
concerning the grounds for unnecessary hardships as outlined in Texas Local Government Code 
(LGC) Section 211.009(b-1).  This section of the LGC states that the Board MAY consider these 
additional unnecessary hardship requirements when making rulings on variance requests.  These 
additional requirements include the following: 
 

(1)  the financial cost of compliance is greater than 50 percent of the appraised value of the 
structure as shown on the most recent appraisal roll certified to the assessor for the 
municipality under Section 26.01, Tax Code; 

(2)  compliance would result in a loss to the lot on which the structure is located of at least 25 
percent of the area on which development may physically occur; 

(3)  compliance would result in the structure not being in compliance with a requirement of a 
municipal ordinance, building code, or other requirement; 

(4)  compliance would result in the unreasonable encroachment on an adjacent property or 
easement; or 

(5)  the municipality considers the structure to be a nonconforming structure. 
 
After discussing these additional unnecessary hardship requirements, the Board directed Staff to 
investigate what surrounding cities are doing in connection with the additional requirements, to 
include how, if being used, these additional requirements are included in the application form. 
 
The information gathered by Staff is included in the meeting packet as an attachment to this item.  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   
 
MOTION:  To approve amendments to the Rules of Procedure for the Board of Adjustment of 
the City of Jersey Village, Texas. 

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

60

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Furldefense.proofpoint.com%2Fv2%2Furl%3Fu%3Dhttp-3A__www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us_GetStatute.aspx-3FCode-3DTX-26Value-3D26.01%26d%3DDwMFAg%26c%3DeuGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM%26r%3D1SBq7I19s89J07Bh2Gx9NmfuL2g-Osl7qiF9Mh-wYy0%26m%3DqQqzkttHF2OaoN8kTRCNu5pF_E3CsZCEdkL1i8HQZqA%26s%3D0sLQgHC3i6GILhAZ-9rAZDjDR8fw98ABYVTmmsMF5YY%26e%3D&data=04%7C01%7Clcoody%40jerseyvillagetx.com%7C8f33c6b730c142f16a7008d9a55c81fc%7Ce67a48990a084595ae5fc1d052866511%7C0%7C0%7C637722639024750138%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=B%2BjHkxlLxOQ9ZmqwJpehpdYpIi7aVo5uVT1EFSUSZag%3D&reserved=0


1 Rules of Procedure - Amended 2023-12-13  

RULES OF PROCEDURE OF THE BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
OF THE CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE, TEXAS 

 

Whereas, Texas Local Government Code Section 211.008(e) provides that the Board of 
Adjustment (the “Board”), by majority vote, shall adopt rules in accordance with any ordinance 
adopted under Chapter 211, and with the approval of City Council; and 

 
Whereas, Texas Local Government Code Sections 211.008-211.011 provide for the appointment 
of the Board, the authority of the Board, the appeal to the Board, and the judicial review of Board 
decisions; and 

 
Whereas, the City Council has adopted ordinances codified, in part as Jersey Village Code of 
Ordinances (“Code”) Sec. 14-22, providing for the Board; and 

 
Whereas, these rules are intended to complement and supplement the applicable state law and city 
ordinances regarding the Board; NOW THEREFORE, 

 
BE IT ORDERED BY THE BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT OF THE CITY OF JERSEY 
VILLAGE, TEXAS: 

 
I. ORGANIZATION AND OFFICERS 

 
101. Organization 

 

The Board of Adjustment (the “Board”) shall consist of at least five (5) regular members 
and two (2) alternate members as appointed by the City Council of the City of Jersey Village, 
Texas (the “City”), and shall be organized and shall exist under and pursuant to the laws of the 
State of Texas and the ordinances of the City of Jersey Village. Code Sec. 14-22. 

 
102. Officers 

 
  The city council shall appoint a chairperson and vice-chairperson after the September 

appointments who shall serve for a period of one year. If at any meeting of four (4) or more 
members of the Board neither the Chairman nor the Vice-Chairman is present, then those Board’s 
members present shall elect one of their number to be Chairman for conducting the meeting as 
provided herein. Code Sec. 14-22. 

 
103. Duties 

 

A. The Chairman, or in the Chairman’s absence the Vice-Chairman, shall preside at 
all meetings, shall decide all points of order or procedure, and as necessary shall 
administer oaths and compel attendance of witnesses. 

 
B. The City Secretary or the City Secretary’s designee shall be the ex-officio (non- 

voting) Secretary of the Board, and shall keep minutes, books, files and other 

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

61



2 Rules of Procedure - Amended 2023-12-13  

records of the board and perform such other duties as are incidental to the office, 
and shall cause to be given such notices as are required in the manner prescribed 
by state law and the City’s ordinances. Code Sec. 14-22(b). 

 
104. Alternate Members. 

 

The selection order for alternate service shall be determined by the alternate position 
number, with Alternate 1 serving for the first absence and so on. Alternate members of the Board 
may also serve in the absence of a regular member when requested to do so by the Mayor or the 
City Manager. Alternate members are authorized to attend meetings when not serving in the place 
of a regular member, but shall not have a vote during those meetings. Code Sec. 14-22. 

 
II. MEETINGS 

 
201. Quorum 

 

A quorum to conduct business, including to consider an appeal, request for variance or 
request for special exception, shall consist of four (4) voting members. Code Sec. 14-22(b). 

 
202. Agenda 

 

An agenda for each meeting of the Board shall be prepared by the City Secretary and/or 
Zoning Official. The agenda shall describe the matters scheduled for consideration by the Board, 
which may include, but not be limited to, appeals, requests for special exceptions, requests for 
variances, other matters for which the Board is required to act under the City’s ordinances, and 
matters pending that require further action by the Board. 

 
203. Meetings 

 

The Board shall meet the third Wednesday of each month if any busy is pending, or as 
necessary for any purpose on the call of the Chairman, the City’s Zoning Official, the City Manager 
or the Mayor. 

 
204. Public Meetings 

 

All meetings shall be held in full compliance with the provisions of State law, the 
ordinances of the City, and these Rules of Procedure. All meetings of the Board shall be open to 
the public, except where the holding of a closed meeting is authorized under state law. The City 
Secretary shall post or publish notice of each meeting as required by the state law and the City’s 
ordinances or as otherwise directed by the Board. 

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

62



3 Rules of Procedure - Amended 2023-12-13  

205. Appearance by counsel 
 

Any party in interest may appear in his own behalf or be represented by an agent and/or 
counsel. 

 
III. OFFICIAL RECORDS 

 
301. Definitions 

 

(a) The official records of the Board shall include these Rules of Procedure and the minutes 
of the Board, together with all appeal and application forms and documentation submitted either 
in favor or against a request findings, decisions, and other official actions. Notes taken by 
individual Board members for their personal use, and not filed with the City Secretary, are not 
official records of the Board. 

 
(b) Zoning Official shall mean the administrative official of the City that makes an 

administrative decision under the City’s zoning ordinances, and includes the City Manager, the 
City building official, the City’s director of public works, or any other administrative official, 
department, board or bureau of the City that makes an administrative decision under the City’s 
zoning ordinances. 

 
(c) Zoning Ordinance shall mean the ordinances of the City adopted under authority of 

Chapter 211 of the Texas Local Government Code, including the City’s zoning regulations and 
the City’s zoning boundaries. 

 
302. Recording of Vote 

 

The minutes of the Board’s proceedings shall show the vote of each member present on 
each decision of the Board, or if a member is absent or fails to vote shall indicate that fact. 

 
303. Files - Retention 

 

Records of all matters coming before the Board shall be filed in the records of the Board. 
Original papers shall be retained in accordance with the City’s applicable records retention 
schedules. 

 
304. Public Record 

 

Records of the Board shall be kept on file in the City’s offices and shall be made available 
for public inspection in accordance with applicable open records laws. 

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

63



4 Rules of Procedure - Amended 2023-12-13  

IV. MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION AND PROCEDURES 
 

401. Authority of Board 
 

In accordance with § 211.009 and 211.010, TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE, as 
amended, and the Zoning Code, the Board may: 

 
A. hear and decide appeals that allege error in an order, requirement, decision, or 

determination by the City’s Zoning Official in the enforcement of the Zoning 
Ordinance (see Appendix A); 

 
B. hear and decide requests for special exceptions as may be provided in the Zoning 

Ordinance when the Zoning Ordinance authorizes the Board to do so (see Appendix 
B); 

 
C. authorize variances from the terms of the Zoning Ordinance, as will not be contrary 

to public interest, and where, owing to special conditions, a literal enforcement of 
the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance will result in unnecessary hardship, and so 
that the spirit of such Ordinance is observed and substantial justice is done (see 
Appendix C); and 

 
D. hear and decide other matters authorized by the City’s Ordinances. 

 
402. Refusal Required 

 

A request for consideration by the Board of an appeal, the granting of a special exception, 
or the granting of a variance, shall be filed on the appropriate form(s) provided by the City, shall 
be accompanied by the prescribed fee, and shall be complete in all respects before being accepted 
for filing. The appeal or application shall bear the signature of the owner of the affected property 
or, if signed by someone other than the owner, accompanied by an acknowledged power of attorney 
authorizing the applicant to file on behalf of the owner. Appeals from a decision, order, 
requirement, or determination of the Zoning Official shall be signed by the person making the 
appeal. An incomplete appeal or application, or a communication purporting to be an application 
and not made in the form prescribed, shall be regarded only as a notice of intent to apply, and shall 
not be considered or acted upon by the Board. If an agent is to speak for an appellant or applicant 
on a matter before the Board in the absence of the appellant or applicant, a notarized letter of 
designation must be included with the appeal or application. 

 
403. Guidelines for Appeal/Application and Decision 

 

An appeal or application shall be considered by the Board according to the guidelines 
contained in the Appendices hereto for the matter under consideration. A single request may 
combine an appeal and one or more applications for variances or special exceptions if they all 
relate to a single property. 

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

64



5 Rules of Procedure - Amended 2023-12-13  

404. Appeal Filing Deadline; Appeal Hearing Schedule 
 

a. Filing Deadline. An appeal of a decision made by an administrative official of the City 
shall be filed within a reasonable time after the date of such decision that is the subject of the 
appeal; provided, further, any such appeal must be filed not later than the 20th day after the date 
the administrative decision is made. Every appeal shall be filed with the City Secretary of the City. 

 
b. Hearing Schedule. The Board will schedule a hearing on the appeal as soon as 

practicablefollowing the submission of an appeal or application for hearing. No appeal is complete 
until all applicable fees have been paid. No public hearing shall be held until public notice has 
been provided. The Board shall decide the appeal at the next meeting for which notice can be 
provided following the hearing and not later than the 60th day after the date the appeal is filed. 

 
405. City Secretary authorized to reject incomplete forms. 

 

The City Secretary is authorized to act for the Board to reject any appeal or application that 
is: a) not filed by the applicable deadline; b) not substantially complete, or c) that is not 
accompanied by the required fee. An appellant or applicant who believes that his or her appeal or 
application was wrongfully rejected may appeal the City Secretary’s decision to the Board by filing 
a written notice of appeal with the City Secretary who shall place the matter on the agenda for the 
next meeting of the Board. 

 
406. Notice 

 

Public notice of all meetings of the Board shall be given as prescribed in the Texas Open 
Meetings Act. All notices shall be made in accordance with applicable state law and the applicable 
Zoning Ordinance provisions. All notices shall identify the applicant, the location of the property 
in issue, the nature of the application, and the applicable Zoning Ordinance provisions. The Board 
may, on motion by an affected party or on its own, determine due notice to the parties in interest. 
The City Secretary shall provide notice of each meeting as required by state law and the City’s 
ordinances. Tex.Gov’t Code Chapter 551; Tex.Loc.Gov’t Code Sec. 211.010; Code Sec. 14-10. 

 
407. Submission of Evidence 

 

Evidence relating to any matter before the Board shall be submitted only to the Board in 
public meeting. 

 
408. Withdrawal 

 

Any request for Board action may be withdrawn upon written notice to the City Secretary; 
but no request shall be withdrawn after the giving of public notice and prior to Board action thereon 
without formal consent of the Board. 

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

65



6 Rules of Procedure - Amended 2023-12-13  

409. Appeal or Application After Board Denial 
 

No appeal or application that has been denied shall be further considered in a new 
proceeding unless there has been a material change in conditions or unless substantial new 
evidence becomes available. 

 
 

V. HEARINGS AND DECISIONS 
 

501. Public Hearings 
 

Hearings on all matters on which a decision of the Board is required by law or by the 
Zoning Ordinance shall be open to the public. The appellant or applicant may appear in appellant 
or applicant’s own behalf or may be represented by an agent and/or counsel. 

 
502. Order of Business 

 

The Chairman shall call the Board to order and the Secretary shall record the members 
present and absent. The Chairman shall publicly advise those present of the procedures to be 
followed in the hearing and the disposition of applications; the Chairman shall call each matter in 
the order in which it was filed, and shall announce the name of the applicant, the location of the 
property involved, and the nature of the request. Supporting evidence for and against each case 
shall be presented to the Board. Each case may be taken under advisement until all have been 
heard. 

 
503. Procedure for Hearing 

 

A. The Chairman shall first call upon the appellant/applicant to present the 
appellant/applicant’s case and all evidence supporting the appellant/applicant’s 
plea. The Chairman shall then inquire of the appellant/applicant if there are others 
affected who support the appeal/application. 

 
B. The Chairman shall next call on the Zoning Official to present any information that 

the Zoning Official deems necessary or appropriate relative to the 
appeal/application. 

 
C. The Chairman shall next call on those opposed to the granting of the 

appeal/application to present their evidence and arguments. The appellant/applicant 
shall then have the right of rebuttal. Following rebuttal, the Chairman shall order 
the hearing closed. 

 
D. Each side shall proceed without interruption by the other, and all arguments and 

pleadings shall be addressed to the Chairman. No questioning or arguments 
between individuals appearing before the Board will be permitted. 

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

66



7 Rules of Procedure - Amended 2023-12-13  

E. The Board may elect to continue a hearing on any matter for which the 
appellant/applicant fails to appear unless the appellant/applicant has requested that 
the Board act without the appellant/applicant being present at the hearing; provided, 
however, the Board shall hear those persons appearing in response to the notice of 
such hearing. 

 
504. Board’s Questions 

 

The Board may direct any question to the appellant/applicant, or to any person speaking 
on the appeal/application, in order to bring out all relevant facts, circumstances, and conditions 
affecting the appeal/application, and the Chairman shall call for questions from other members of 
the Board and from the staff before closing the hearing on each appeal/application. 

 
505. Decision 

 

After each appeal/application has been heard, and the public hearing closed, it shall be 
reviewed and acted upon. For an appeal, the Board may reverse or affirm,in whole or in part, or 
modify the administrative official’s order or decision from which the appeal is taken, and make 
the correct order or decision. For a special exception or variance, the Board may grant, may grant 
conditional approval, may grant with modifications, or may deny an application. The Board may 
also defer action on any matter whenever it concludes that additional evidence is needed or that 
alternate solutions need further study. An appeal or application may be dismissed when the Board 
finds that it has been improperly filed or upon notification by the Zoning Official that a permit has 
been issued which negates the appeal or application. 

 
506. Vote Required 

 

The concurring vote of four (4) members shall be necessary to grant, or to grant 
conditionally, any matter requested of the Board. When a motion in favor of an applicant fails to 
receive four (4) affirmative votes, the Secretary shall record that fact and shall note in the minutes 
of the Board that the appeal or request has been denied. 

 
507. Procedures applicable to formal proceedings. 

 

The following additional procedures shall be applicable in all appeals and applications 
where: 1) one or more persons, other than the appellant/applicant or Zoning Official, are admitted 
as formal parties; and 2) in appeals from decisions of the Zoning Official, where the appellant 
specifically requests that these procedures be followed. 

 
A. The appellant/applicant shall be given the right to open and close the evidence. 

 
B. The appellant/applicant may, at its sole election, permit City staff to present its 

recommendation on the matter during the appellant/applicant’s opening. Otherwise, 
the staff shall present its recommendation, if any, after the appellant/applicant and 
any other parties have completed their presentations. 

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

67



8 Rules of Procedure - Amended 2023-12-13  

C. If one or more of the parties file a written request for the right to cross examine 
witnesses, all witness testimony shall be submitted in question and answer form, 
and all parties shall have the right to cross-examine any witnesses whose testimony 
is adverse to that party’s position. 

 
D. Members of the Board may question any witness or party, regardless of whether 

the witness testimony is presented in question and answer form. 
 

E. Any written or physical evidence offered by the parties or by City staff shall be 
submitted through the Chairman or the Secretary to the Board during a public 
meeting. Strict rules of evidence shall not be followed with regard to physical or 
written evidence, but the Board may allow any party or the Zoning Official to point 
out questions of authenticity, reliability, relevance, bias, prejudice, etc. 

 
 

VI. CERTIFICATION AND AMENDMENTS 
 

601. Certified Copy 
 

A certified copy of these Rules of Procedure and any amendments hereto shall be placed 
on record in the office of the City Secretary. 

 
602. Repealing Clause 

 

All previously adopted rules and regulations of the Board shall be, and the same are hereby, 
expressly repealed. 

 
603. Amendment Procedure 

 

Amendments to these Rules of Procedure may be made only by action by the Board. 
 

604. Effective Date. 
 

These rules shall become effective upon approval by the City Council. 

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

68



9 Rules of Procedure - Amended 2023-12-13  

APPENDIX “A” 
TO BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT RULES OF PROCEDURE 

 

INTERPRETATION APPEALS 
 

A-1. Interpretation: Basis for Filing 
 

Whenever it is alleged that there is an error in any determination interpreting or applying 
the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance by the Zoning Official, an appeal of such determination 
may be filed with the Board. 

 
A-2. Interpretation: Papers Required 

An appeal shall include: 
 

1. a statement by the applicant describing the way it is alleged the Zoning Ordinance 
should be interpreted, together with diagrams and charts illustrating the erroneous 
and the proper application of the map or text provisions; and 

 
2. a statement by the Zoning Official giving the reasons for the Zoning Official’s 

interpretation of the Zoning Ordinance. 
 

A-3. Interpretation: Basis for Action 
 

1. Before acting on an appeal for interpretation, the Board shall consider: 
 

a. the facts and statements filed in the application; 
 

b. the testimony presented at the public hearing; 
 

c. the City staff’s report on the appeal; and 
 

d. the Board’s independent investigation of the language of the Zoning 
Ordinance and of related ordinances having a bearing thereon. 

 
2. The Board shall make an interpretation after finding that the following conditions 

exist: 
 

a. the interpretation is in conformity with the spirit and intent of the Zoning 
Ordinance; and 

 
b. the resulting interpretation will not grant a special privilege to one property 

inconsistent with other properties or uses similarly situated. 

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

69



  

APPENDIX “B” 
TO BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT RULES OF PROCEDURE 

 

SPECIAL EXCEPTIONS 
 
B-1. Special Exception: Basis for Filing 

 

Whenever an applicant wishes to develop property pursuant to a special exception as provided in 
the Zoning Ordinance, an application for a special exception shall be approved by the Board before the 
Zoning Official shall issue a permit for the proposed construction or use. 

 
B-2. Special Exception: Papers Required 

 

An application for a special exception shall include: 
 

1. a site plan, drawn to scale, showing all lot dimensions, and the location and dimensions of 
all existing and proposed lot improvements; 

 
2. a statement by the Zoning Official citing the reason a special exception is required; and 

 
3. a statement by the applicant describing the manner in which all conditions prescribed by 

the Zoning Ordinance and by these Rules will be met. 
 
B-3. Special Exception: Basis for Action 

 

1. Before acting on the application, the Board shall consider: 
 

a. the facts filed with the application; 
 

b. the testimony presented at the public hearing; 
 

c. the City staff’s report on the application; and 
 

d. when appropriate, the observations of individual Board members’ field inspections 
of the property. 

 
2. The Board may grant the application provided the applicant has demonstrated, to the 

satisfaction of the Board, that: 
 

a. all conditions enumerated in the Zoning Ordinance for the requested special 
exception exist; and 

 
b. the granting of the exception will further the objectives, spirit, and intent of the 

Zoning Ordinance. 

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

70



  

APPENDIX “C” 
TO BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT RULES OF PROCEDURE 

 

VARIANCES 
 

C-1. Variance: Basis for Filing 
 

Whenever, owing to exceptional and extraordinary conditions, the literal enforcement of the 
provisions of the Zoning Ordinance will result in unnecessary hardship to the applicant in the use or 
development of his property, a request for a variance may be filed with the Board. Code Sec. 14-9(b) (The 
board of adjustment may authorize in specific cases a variance from the terms of chapter 14 other than the platting and 
subdivision requirements of article III, the public easement requirements of article VI, the public utility requirements of 
article VIII, the storm drainage requirements of article IX and the driveway requirements of article XI. The board may 
not authorize a variance unless it finds, in writing, after a hearing, that the variance is not contrary to the public interest, 
that, due to special conditions, a literal enforcement of Chapter 14’s provisions would result in unnecessary hardship, and 
that in granting the variance, the spirit of Chapter 14 will be observed and substantial justice will be done). 

 
C-2. Variance: Papers Required 

 

A request for variance shall include: 
 

1. a SITE PLAN drawn to scale, showing the location and dimensions of the lot, all existing 
and proposed improvements; and all structures located adjacent and contiguous to the lot 
for which the variance(s) is requested; 

 
2. a STATEMENT OF FACTS AND REASONS why a literal enforcement of the Zoning 

Ordinance should not be applied to the property in question and how the standards 
governing the Board’s actions would be satisfied; and 

 
3. a description of the specific variance requested, either in narrative form or by depiction on 

a drawing and/or photograph, and in such detail as to inform Board members of the exact 
nature of the prohibited conduct for which the variance is being sought. 

 
C-3. Variance: Basis for Action 

 

1. Before acting on a request for variance, the Board shall consider: 
a. the facts filed with the application; 
b. the testimony presented at the public hearing on the application; 
c. the City staff’s report on the appeal; and 
d. the observations of individual Board members’ field inspections of the property. 

 
2. The Board may grant the requested variance, subject to such terms and conditions as it may 

impose, provided the applicant has demonstrated, to the satisfaction of the Board, that the 
conditions governing the granting of a variance as set forth in the Zoning Ordinance have 
been satisfied, and that the decision of the Board would further the spirit and intent of such 
Ordinance. 

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

71



BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE, TEXAS 

 

To:            Zoning Board of Adjustment 

From:        TX BBG Consulting 

Date:         January 30, 2024 

Subject:     RE: Financial Considerations when determining Unnecessary Hardship 

During the last meeting of the Zoning Board of Adjustment (“the Board”) it was requested that a 
report be created to assist the Board in their efforts to adopt rules and procedures in accordance 
with the Local Government Code (“the LGC”). This memo will outline how the financial 
considerations for Unnecessary Hardship, as outlined in Section 211.009 of the LGC, have been 
integrated into the variance procedures of various Texas cities.  

Upon reviewing the variance procedures established by other local Boards, it was observed that a 
significant number have not explicitly addressed or listed the financial considerations outlined in 
LGC §211.009 within their variance procedures. The majority of the cities analyzed during this 
report listed only the three historic criteria and remained silent on financial considerations. The 
historical criteria are as follows: 

1. That the request has been determined to not be contrary to the public’s interest. 
2. That due to special conditions, strict enforcement would result in an unnecessary hardship. 
3. That by granting the variance, the spirit of the chapter would be upheld and observed. 

In instances where financial considerations were acknowledged within a city’s variance procedures, 
there was typically accompanying language emphasizing that variance requests made solely or 
primarily on financial grounds were not deemed sufficient to demonstrate an unnecessary hardship. 

“A "special condition" or "hardship" that is self-created, personal or based only on 
financial reasons is not sufficient to support the issuance of a variance.” 

It is recommended that the Jersey Village Zoning Board of Adjustment consider incorporating 
similar language into its variance procedures, explicitly stating that while financial considerations 
can be taken into account by the Board when determining whether an Unnecessary Hardship is 
present, a request based solely or primarily on financial concerns is not sufficient to support the 
issuance of a variance.  This approach aligns with the broader goal of maintaining the integrity of 
the city’s zoning regulations and ensuring that variances are granted judiciously. 

Regards, 

Joe Newton 
Senior Planner 
TX BBG Consulting 

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

72



 
 

 
    Created: 2023-10-04 16:43:56 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 32) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Flower Mound, TX 

Sec. 78-85. Variances. 

(a) Authority of board. The board of adjustment shall be authorized to permit such variances or modifications of 
the height, yard, area, coverage, sign and parking regulations as may be necessary to secure appropriate 
development of a parcel of land that differs from other parcels in the district by being of such restricted 
shape or slope that it cannot be appropriately developed without such modification.  

(b) Required findings. In exercising its power to grant a variance in accordance with subpart B of this Code, the 
board of adjustment shall make a finding and show in its minutes that:  

(1) There are special circumstances existing on the property on which the application is made related to 
size, shape, area, topography, surrounding conditions and location that do not apply generally to other 
property in the same area and the same zoning district.  

(2) A variance is necessary to permit the applicant the same rights in the use of this property that are 
presently enjoyed under subpart B of this Code by other properties in the vicinity and zone, but which 
rights are denied to the property on which the application is made.  

(3) The granting of the variance on the specific property will not adversely affect the land use pattern as 
outlined by the master land use plan and will not adversely affect any other feature of the 
comprehensive master plan of the town.  

(4) The variance, if granted, will be no material detriment to the public welfare or injury to the use, 
enjoyment or value of property in the vicinity.  

(c) Structures. In exercising its authority under subsection (b), the board may consider the following as grounds 
to determine whether compliance with the ordinance, as applied to a structure, would result in an 
unnecessary hardship regarding structures and buildings:  

(1) The financial cost of compliance is greater than 50 percent of the appraised value of the structure as 
shown on the most recent appraisal roll certified to the assessor for the town.  

(2) Compliance would result in a loss to the lot on which the structure is located of at least 25 percent of 
the area on which development may physically occur.  

(3) Compliance would result in the structure not being in compliance with a requirement of this Code, 
building code, or other requirement.  

(4) Compliance would result in the unreasonable encroachment on an adjacent property or easement.  

(5) The municipality considers the structure to be a nonconforming structure per section 78-236.  

(Code 1989, ch. 12, § 6.12; Ord. No. 43-21 , § 1, 10-4-2021) 

 

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

73



 
 

 
    Created: 2023-10-04 16:43:56 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 32) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Pearland, TX 

 

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

74



Galveston, TX 

SEC. 13.401 - VARIANCES FROM DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS  

A.  Generally. The Zoning Board of Adjustment shall approve or deny variances from the zoning related 
development standards (such as height, bulk or area) of these regulations, but not from any subdivision 
related standards which are considered by the Planning Commission as alternative standards of 
compliance as provided in Article 6, Subdivision Design and Land Development.  

B.  Approval Standards. The Board of Adjustment may grant a variance under this Section only if the 
variance is not prohibited by Section 12.401.C, and if the Zoning Board of Adjustment makes a 
determination in writing that all of the following are demonstrated:  

1.  The request for the variance is rooted in special conditions of the applicant's property that do not 
generally exist on other properties in the same zoning district.  

2.  Due to said special conditions, the enforcement of the strict terms of these regulations would 
impose an unnecessary hardship on the applicant.  

3.  The variance is not contrary to the public interest, in that:  

a.  It does not allow applicants to impair the application of these regulations for:  

i.  Self-imposed hardships;  

ii.  Hardships based solely on financial considerations, convenience, or inconvenience; or  

iii.  Conditions that are alleged to be "special" but that are actually common to many 
properties within the same zoning district.  

b.  The variance will not have a detrimental impact upon:  

i.  The current or future use of adjacent properties for purposes for which they are zoned;  

ii.  Public infrastructure or services; and  

iii.  Public health, safety, morals, and general welfare of the community.  

4.  The degree of variance allowed from these regulations is the least that is necessary to grant relief 
from the identified unnecessary hardship.  

5.  The variance shall not be used to circumvent other procedures and standards of these regulations 
that could be used for the same or comparable effect (e.g., if alternative development patterns, 
alternative development standards, or other flexible measures in these regulations are available 
that would avoid or mitigate hardship without using a variance, then they must be used).  

6.  By granting the variance, the spirit of these regulations is observed and substantial justice is done.  

7.  Should the Zoning Board of Adjustment approve a variance application that does not meet the 
approval standards established in this Section, the Planning Department shall notify the City 
Council within three days from the date the variance is approved.  

( Ord. No. 18-037, § 2, 6-21-18 )  

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

75

http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=898241&datasource=ordbank


 
 

 
    Created: 2023-11-14 12:23:40 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 48, Update 4) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

La Porte, TX 

Sec. 106-192. Variance. 

(a) Application for variances. All applications for a variance from the terms of this chapter shall be in writing and 
shall specify the facts involved, the relief desired, and the grounds thereof. Each such application shall be 
filed with the enforcement officer who after investigation shall transmit such application together with his 
report to the board of adjustment within ten days after the filing of the application with the enforcement 
officer.  

(b) Findings of fact/definition of hardship. 

(1) The term "variance" shall mean a deviation from the literal provisions of this chapter which is granted 
by the board when strict conformity to this chapter would cause an unnecessary hardship because of 
the circumstances unique to the property on which the variance is granted.  

(2) Except as otherwise prohibited, the board is empowered to authorize a variance from a requirement of 
this chapter when the board finds that all of the following conditions have been met:  

a. That the granting of the variance will not be contrary to the public interest;  

b. That literal enforcement of this chapter will result in unnecessary hardship because of 
exceptional narrowness, shallowness, shape, topography or other extraordinary or exceptional 
physical situation unique to the specific piece of property in question. "Unnecessary hardship" 
shall mean physical hardship relating to the property itself as distinguished from a hardship 
relating to convenience, financial considerations or caprice, and the hardship must not result 
from the applicant or property owner's own actions; and  

c. That by granting the variance, the spirit of this chapter will be observed.  

(3) The applicant shall have the burden of proving to the board that the foregoing conditions have been 
met.  

(c) Use variance prohibited. No variance shall be granted to permit a use in a zoning district in which that use is 
prohibited.  

(d) Hearings on applications for variances. The board of adjustment shall fix a reasonable time for the hearing of 
all applications for variances, give public notice thereof, as well as due notice to the parties in interest, and 
decide the same within a reasonable time, as specified in section 106-194 (Notice of public hearings before 
the board of adjustments). Upon the hearing any party may appear in person or by agent or by attorney.  

 

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

76



 
 

 
    Created: 2023-12-20 10:50:43 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 32) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Manvel, TX 

Sec. 77-74. Variances. 

(a) The zoning board of adjustment shall not grant a variance unless it shall, in each case, make specific written 
findings based directly upon the particular evidence presented to it which support written conclusions that:  

(1) The granting of a variance is necessary to secure appropriate development of a parcel of land which 
differs from other parcels in the zone by being of such restricted area, shape or slope that it cannot be 
appropriately developed without modification;  

(2) The granting of a variance will not be materially detrimental or injurious to other property or 
improvements in the neighborhood in which the subject property is located, nor impair an adequate 
supply of light or air to adjacent property, substantially increase the congestion in the public streets, 
increase the danger of fire, endanger the public health, safety and well-being, or substantially diminish 
or impair property values within the neighborhood; and  

(3) The variance desired will not be contrary to the general purpose and intent of these regulations.  

(b) The board of adjustment may establish reasonable stipulations of approval or modifications to a plan 
proposed with a variance, in order to minimize the impact of the variance on surrounding property, preserve 
the character of the area or protect property in the area.  

(Ord. No. 2020-O-15, § 4, 10-19-2020) 

 

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

77



 
 

 
    Created: 2023-11-28 15:19:54 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 20) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Missouri City, TX 

Sec. 18.2. Powers. 

B. Variances. 

1. The board of adjustment shall have the power to authorize upon appeal in specific cases such variance 
from the terms of this ordinance as will not be contrary to the public interest, where, owing to special 
conditions, a literal enforcement of the provisions of this ordinance will result in unnecessary hardship, 
and so that the spirit of the ordinance shall be observed and substantial justice done. In granting such 
variance, the board of adjustment may prescribe appropriate conditions and safeguards in conformity 
with this ordinance. Violation of such conditions and safeguards, when made a part of the terms under 
which the variance is granted, shall be deemed violation of this ordinance. Under no circumstances 
shall the board of adjustment grant a variance to allow a use not permissible under the terms of this 
ordinance in the district involved, or any use, expressly or impliedly, prohibited by the terms of this 
ordinance in said district.  

2. In exercising its authority under this subsection, the board may consider the following as grounds to 
determine whether compliance with the ordinance as applied to a struct re that is the subject of the 
appeal would result in unnecessary hardship:  

a. The financial cost of compliance is greater than 50 percent of the appraised value of the structure 
as shown on the most recent appraisal roll certified to the assessor for the municipality under 
V.T.C.A., Tax Code § 26.01;  

b. Compliance would result in a loss to the lot on which the structure is located of at least 25 
percent of the area on which development may physically occur;  

c. Compliance would result in the structure not being in compliance with a requirement of a 
municipal ordinance, building code, or other requirement;  

d. Compliance would result in the unreasonable encroachment on an adjacent property or 
easement; or  

e. The municipality considers the structure to be a nonconforming structure.  

 

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

78



 
 

 
    Created: 2023-11-29 10:57:07 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 44) 

 
Page 1 of 2 

West University Place, TX 

Sec. 18-20. Variances. 

(a) Generally. The BSC has limited authority to issue variances from ordinances subject to its appellate authority 
or quasijudicial enforcement authority.  

(b) Applications. Any person who is restricted or regulated by a provision of the ordinance in question may apply 
for a variance. However, the application must either be signed by the owner of the property involved or must 
be accompanied by written proof that the person who does sign has specific authority from the owner to 
apply for the variance sought. Applications for variance must be made upon forms prescribed by the building 
official, must be complete, must be signed under oath, must be accompanied by the fee prescribed by the 
city and must be filed with the building official. The application must include the following:  

(1) The particular requirement, cited by section and paragraph number, from which a variance is sought.  

(2) The nature of the hardship imposed by the requirement.  

(3) Any proposed condition, alternative method or procedure to be followed in lieu of the requirement.  

(4) The effect of the requested variance, upon the city as a whole and upon nearby residents and 
properties.  

(5) The estimated cost, in dollars, of complying with the requirement.  

(6) Other items required by the building official or the BSC.  

(c) Handling; notice. The building official shall transmit applications to the BSC, which has sole authority to issue 
variances. If the building official determines that an application would possibly have a significant effect upon 
other properties or persons, the building official shall attempt to provide notice to such persons prior to the 
time when the BSC will consider the variance. Such notice may be given by publication, posting or mail, as 
the building official may determine.  

(d) Permissive factors. In considering a variance, the BSC may take the following into account:  

(1) Whether the variance will assist in the protection or preservation of historic structure or in the 
protection or preservation of old stock housing (as such housing then exists or as it may be proposed to 
be remodeled or expanded).  

(2) Whether the application involves remedial work necessary to bring a structure into compliance with 
applicable ordinances.  

(3) Whether there are other similar circumstances in existence.  

(e) Mandatory factors. In considering a variance, the BSC shall take the following into account:  

(1) Whether the applicant has made an earnest, good faith effort to comply with the requirement.  

(2) Whether the applicant brought the matter to the attention of the city on his own motion, without 
intervention or enforcement action by any city official.  

(3) Whether alternative methods or procedures will achieve the same, or substantially the same, result as 
literal compliance with the requirement.  

(f) Required findings. The BSC may not issue a variance unless it affirmatively finds all of the following:  

(1) The imposition of the requirement imposes an exceptional hardship upon the applicant. It is the 
general intent of this section that financial cost, alone, would not ordinarily constitute an exceptional 
hardship.  

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

79



 
 

 
    Created: 2023-11-29 10:57:07 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 44) 

 
Page 2 of 2 

(2) No reasonable and feasible method or procedure is currently available to comply with the 
requirement.  

(3) The imposition of the requirement is unjustified because of good and sufficient cause demonstrated to 
the BSC.  

(4) The variance will not introduce or increase any threat to public health or safety.  

(5) The variance is consistent with the purpose and intent of the ordinance in question.  

(6) The variance will not cause a nuisance and will not unreasonably interfere with the use of nearby 
property.  

(7) The variance will not cause a fraud to be worked upon the public or any individual.  

(8) The variance will not cause an increase in public expenditures or budgets.  

(9) The variance will not create an irreconcilable conflict with any other ordinance, law, rule or regulation.  

(g) Form of variances; conditions; recordation. No variance is effective unless it is in writing and signed by the 
duly authorized officers of the BSC. The BSC may impose restrictions or conditions upon any variance and 
may require that notice of a variance be recorded in the real property records of the county, at the expense 
of the applicant.  

(h) Effect of variance. Variances do not create any property right or vested right. Variances remain subject to the 
regulatory control of the city. When a variance has been issued, the building official may not deny a permit 
because of noncompliance with the requirement affected by the variance, provided that all conditions are 
complied with. It shall be an affirmative defense, in any proceeding to enforce the requirement, that a 
variance was issued to authorize the conduct in question, that the variance has not been modified or 
revoked and that all applicable conditions have been fully observed and complied with.  

(i) Revocation; modification. The BSC may revoke or modify any variance previously issued, provided that a 
good faith attempt is first made to notify the person who applied for the variance.  

(Code 2003, § 6.206; Ord. No. 1798, § 1(ex. A), 5-23-2005; Ord. No. 1872, § 1(ex. A), 4-28-2008) 

 

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

80



CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE 

Application for Request for Variance 

 
• $500.00 non-refundable fee due upon submission for Districts A and C. 

• $1,000.00 non-refundable fee due upon submission for all district except A and C. 

 
PROPERTY INFORMATION: 

ADDRESS:    

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:   

LOT:    

BLOCK:    

SUBDIVISION:   

 

APPLICANT INFORMATION: 

(If different than owner, application must be accompanied by an Appointment of Agent Affidavit) 

APPLICANT:     

PHONE:    

ADDRESS:   

CITY:     

STATE:    

ZIP:     

 

OWNER INFORMATION: 

PROPERTY OWNER:     

PHONE:     

ADDRESS:     

CITY:   

STATE:     

ZIP:    

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

81



List the exact Section from the Zoning Ordinance from which a Variance is requested: 

 

 

 

Describe the existing standard or regulations from which a Variance(s) is requested: 

 

 

 

 

Specifically state the exact wording of the Variance(s) requested: 

 

 

 

 

1) What special conditions or circumstances apply to the applicant’s property which are not generally 

applicable to other properties in the same zoning district? 

 

 

 

 

2) Describe how a strict enforcement of the applicable provisions of the Code would result in an Unnecessary 

Hardship being imposed on the applicant’s property. 

An “Unnecessary Hardship” shall mean physical hardship relating to the property itself as distinguished 

from a hardship relating to convenience, financial considerations or caprice, and the hardship must not 

result from the applicant or owner’s own action. 

 

 

 

 

3) Have all other alternative designs or proposals that could comply with a strict enforcement of the provisions 

of the Code been exhausted in advance of this Variance request? If yes, list what alternatives have been 

considered, and describe why the specified alternatives are not deemed acceptable for the project or 

proposal. 

 

 

 

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

82



OFFICE USE ONLY 

RECEIVED BY:   DATE:    

FEE PAID (AMOUNT): $     

4) Explain how the approval of this Variance will not be contrary to the public interest (i.e., not against the 

general welfare or well-being of the surrounding community and public). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Signature of Applicant: Date: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F A
D

JU
ST

E
M

E
N

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 30, 2024

83


	2024-01-30_BOA_Agenda WEB
	B - Designate Alternates if Neeced
	C - Citizens' Comments
	D - Minutes
	2023-12-13_BOA_Minutes WEB
	Order 2023-01 - DENIED - 16525 DeLozier L2 AccStructure WEB


	E - PH - 11518 FM 529
	ARF - 11518 FM529 Gas Station
	11518 FM 529 App for Variance - ALL
	updated variance application
	variance request
	Initial Site Plan Over Survey
	Sheets and Views
	Site (ISP)


	89-7956, Houston ALTA Survey 12-21-2022
	1
	Sheets and Views
	Survey


	89-7956, Houston ALTA Survey 12-21-2022
	2
	Sheets and Views
	Survey




	7956 perspective
	Sheets and Views
	11x17


	authorized person contract
	power of attorney
	11518 FM 529 Appointment of Agent_signed
	11518 FM 529 Receipt

	City Cert 11518 FM529
	App PostCert - 11518 FM529
	Script - 11518 FM529 Gas Station


	E1 - Action - 11518 FM 529
	ARF - 11518 FM529 GasStation
	14-105 – Commercial Permitted Use Table
	Proposed Order - 11518 FM529 - GasStation


	F - Amended Rules of Procedure
	ARF - Amend Rules of Procedure
	BOA Rules of Procedure - Amended 2023-12-13
	BE IT ORDERED BY THE BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT OF THE CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE, TEXAS:
	II. MEETINGS
	III. OFFICIAL RECORDS
	IV. MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION AND PROCEDURES
	V. HEARINGS AND DECISIONS
	VI. CERTIFICATION AND AMENDMENTS
	APPENDIX “A”
	APPENDIX “B”
	APPENDIX “C”

	Jersey Village - Memo to The Board of Adjustment
	Jersey Village - Compiled Findings on Variance Approval Procedures
	Flower Mound.pdf
	Flower Mound, TX
	Sec. 78-85. Variances.

	Pearland.pdf
	Pearland, TX

	Galveston.pdf
	La Porte.pdf
	La Porte, TX
	Sec. 106-192. Variance.

	Manvel.pdf
	Manvel, TX
	Sec. 77-74. Variances.

	Missouri City.pdf
	Missouri City, TX
	Sec. 18.2. Powers.

	West University Place.pdf
	West University Place, TX
	Sec. 18-20. Variances.


	Jersey Village - Draft Variance Application (REVISED 1.24.24)





